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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION.

Item 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Winnebago Industries, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended

November 24, November 25,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2018 2017
Net revenues $ 493,648 $ 450,021
Cost of goods sold 422,652 387,190
Gross profit 70,996 62,831
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 35,712 29,600
Amortization of intangible assets 2,659 2,055
Total operating expenses 38,371 31,655
Operating income 32,625 31,176
Interest expense 4,501 4,781
Non-operating income (763) (123)
Income before income taxes 28,887 26,518
Provision for income taxes 6,726 8,560
Net income $ 22,161 $ 17,958
Income per common share:

Basic $ 0.70 $ 0.57

Diluted $ 0.70 $ 0.57
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 31,567 31,614

Diluted 31,814 31,772
Net income $ 22,161 $ 17,958
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Amortization of net actuarial loss (net of tax of $3 and $4) 8 6

Change in fair value of interest rate swap (net of tax of $7 and $387) (22) 634

Total other comprehensive income (loss) (14) 640
Comprehensive income $ 22,147 $ 18,598

See Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Winnebago Industries, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited)

November 24, August 25,
(in thousands, except per share data) 2018 2018
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 702 $ 2,342
Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts ($179 and $197, respectively) 140,837 164,585
Inventories 191,461 195,128
Prepaid expenses and other assets 10,256 9,883
Total current assets 343,256 371,938
Property, plant, and equipment, net 110,212 101,193
Other assets:
Goodwill 275,072 274,370
Other intangible assets, net 263,058 265,717
Investment in life insurance 26,651 28,297
Other assets 11,724 10,290
Total assets 1,029,973 $ 1,051,805
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 79,687 $ 81,039
Income taxes payable 13,212 15,655
Accrued expenses:
Accrued compensation 21,977 29,350
Product warranties 41,303 40,498
Self-insurance 13,381 12,262
Promotional 14,868 11,017
Accrued interest 3,026 3,095
Other 11,736 11,269
Total current liabilities 199,190 204,185
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt 253,262 291,441
Deferred income taxes 4,834 4,457
Unrecognized tax benefits 1,745 1,745
Deferred compensation benefits, net of current portion 14,214 15,282
Other 250 250
Total non-current liabilities 274,305 313,175
Contingent liabilities and commitments (Note 12)
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.01: Authorized-10,000 shares; Issued-none — —
Common stock, par value $0.50: Authorized-60,000 shares; Issued-51,776 shares 25,888 25,888
Additional paid-in capital 88,288 86,223
Retained earnings 787,794 768,816
Accumulated other comprehensive income 878 892
Treasury stock, at cost: 20,178 and 20,243 shares, respectively (346,370) (347,374)
Total stockholders' equity 556,478 534,445
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 1,029,973 $ 1,051,805

See Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Winnebago Industries, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended

November 24, November 25,
(in thousands) 2018 2017
Operating activities:
Net income $ 22,161 % 17,958
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 3,169 2,130
Amortization of intangibles assets 2,659 2,055
Amortization of debt issuance costs 394 437
Last in, first-out expense 597 299
Stock-based compensation 2,472 823
Deferred income taxes 382 1,665
Other, net (570) 97
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 23,748 7,675
Inventories 3,070 (9,821)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 68 (936)
Accounts payable (799) (2,443)
Income taxes and unrecognized tax benefits (2,443) 6,447
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (737) 3,072
Net cash provided by operating activities 54,171 29,458
Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (12,771) (5,357)
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (702) —
Proceeds from the sale of property — 92
Other, net 311 (57)
Net cash used in investing activities (13,162) (5,322)
Financing activities:
Borrowings on credit agreement 133,711 —
Repayments of credit agreement (172,229) (4,250)
Payments of cash dividends (3,183) —
Payments for repurchases of common stock (948) (1,363)
Net cash used in financing activities (42,649) (5,613)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,640) 18,523
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,342 35,945
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 702 54,468
Supplement cash flow disclosure:
Income taxes paid, net $ 8,778 322
Interest paid $ 3,736 4,548
Non-cash transactions:
Capital expenditures in accounts payable $ 145 379
Accrued dividends $ — 3,187

See Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Winnebago Industries, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

(Unaudited)

Accumulated Other

(in thousands, Common Shares Additional paid-in Retained Comprehensive Income Treasury Stock Total stockholders'
except per share data) Number Amount capital earnings (Loss) Number Amount equity
Balance, August 26, 2017 51,776 $ 25888 $ 80,401 $ 679,138 $ (1,023) (20,183) $  (342,730) $ 441,674
Stock-based compensation, net of forfeitures — — 804 — — 1 19 823
Issuance of restricted stock — — (1,165) — — 74 1,251 86
Repurchase of common stock — — — — — (32) (1,363) (1,363)
Common stock dividends; $0.10 per share — — — (3,187) — — — (3,187)
Actuarial loss, net of $4 tax — — — — 6 — — 6
Change in fair value of interest rate swap, net of $387
tax — — — — 634 — — 634
Net income — — — 17,958 — — — 17,958
Balance, November 25, 2017 51,776 $ 25,888 $ 80,040 $ 693,909 $ (383) (20,140) $  (342,823) $ 456,631
Balance, August 25, 2018 51,776 $ 25888 $ 86,223 $ 768,816 $ 892 (20,243) $  (347,374) $ 534,445
Stock-based compensation, net of forfeitures — — 2,448 — — 2 41 2,489
Issuance of restricted stock — — (383) — — 111 1,911 1,528
Repurchase of common stock — — — — — (48) (948) (948)
Common stock dividends; $0.10 per share — — — (3,183) — — — (3,183)
Actuarial loss, net of $3 tax — — — — 8 — — 8
Change in fair value of interest rate swap, net of $7
tax — — — — (22) — — (22)
Net income — — — 22,161 — — — 22,161
Balance, November 24, 2018 51,776 $ 25,888 $ 88,288 $ 787,794 $ 878 (20,178) $ (346,370) $ 556,478

See Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Winnebago Industries, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

Unless the context otherwise requires, the use of the terms "Winnebago Industries," "WGO," "we," "us," and "our" in these Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements refers to
Winnebago Industries, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

In the opinion of management, the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements contain all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation as prescribed by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). All adjustments were comprised of normal recurring adjustments, except as noted in these Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018.

Fiscal Period

We follow a 52-/53-week fiscal year, ending the last Saturday in August. Fiscal 2019 is a 53-week year, while Fiscal 2018 was a 52-week year. The extra (53rd) week in Fiscal 2019 will be
recognized in our fourth quarter.

Subsequent Events

In preparing the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, we evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition and disclosure through the date of this filing.
There were no material subsequent events, except for those listed below.

2019 Omnibus Incentive Plan

On December 11, 2018, our shareholders approved the Winnebago Industries, Inc. 2019 Omnibus Incentive Plan as detailed in our Proxy Statement for the 2018 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders.

Dividend

On December 12, 2018, our Board of Directors approved a quarterly cash dividend of $0.11 per share payable on January 23, 2019 to common stockholders of record at the close of business on
January 9, 2019.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standard Update (“ASU”) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which requires an entity to recognize both
assets and liabilities arising from financing and operating leases, along with additional qualitative and quantitative disclosures. This ASU and the related amendments must be adopted on a
modified retrospective basis to either each prior reporting period presented or as of the beginning of the period of adoption. Based on the effective dates, we expect to adopt the new guidance in
the first quarter of Fiscal 2020. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption on our consolidated financial statements.

In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815), which improves the financial reporting of hedging relationships to better portray the economic results of an
entity's risk management activities in its financial statements. ASU 2017-12 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 (our Fiscal 2020), including interim periods
within those annual reporting periods. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this ASU on our consolidated financial statements.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In the first quarter of Fiscal 2019, we adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which establishes a comprehensive five-step model for the recognition of
revenue from contracts with customers. This model is based on the core principle that revenue should be recognized to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. We elected the modified retrospective method of adoption, which we
applied to contracts not completed as of the initial date of adoption. Application of the transition requirements had no material impact on operations or beginning retained earnings. While changes
to certain control processes and procedures were updated for this adoption, the changes did not have a material impact to our internal control financial reporting framework.
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Also in the first quarter of Fiscal 2019, we retrospectively adopted ASU 2016-15, Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments (Topic 230), which provides guidance for eight
specific cash flow issues with the objective of reducing the existing diversity in practice. The adoption of this standard did not materially impact our statements of cash flows, and no cash flow
reclassifications were required for the prior period.

Note 2: Business Segments

In the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2018, we revised our segment presentation. We have five operating segments: 1) Winnebago motorhomes, 2) Winnebago towables, 3) Grand Design towables, 4)
Winnebago specialty vehicles, and 5) Chris-Craft marine. We evaluate performance based on each operating segment's Adjusted EBITDA, as defined below, which excludes certain corporate
administration expenses and non-operating income and expense.

Our two reportable segments include: 1) Motorhome (comprised of products that include a motorized chassis as well as other related manufactured products and services) and 2) Towable
(comprised of products which are not motorized and are generally towed by another vehicle as well as other related manufactured products and services), which is an aggregation of the
Winnebago towables and Grand Design towables operating segments.

The Corporate / All Other category includes the Winnebago specialty vehicles and Chris-Craft marine operating segments as well as expenses related to certain corporate administration
expenses for the oversight of the enterprise. These expenses include items such as corporate leadership and administration costs. Previously, these expenses were allocated to each operating
segment.

Identifiable assets of the reportable segments exclude general corporate assets, which principally consist of cash and cash equivalents and certain deferred tax balances. The general corporate
assets are included in the Corporate / All Other category.

Prior period segment information has been reclassified to conform to the current reportable segment presentation. The reclassifications included removing the corporate administration expenses
from both the Motorhome and Towable reportable segments and removing Winnebago specialty vehicles from the Motorhome reportable segment, as we began to dedicate leadership and focus
on these operations separately from our Winnebago motorhomes operations.

Our chief operating decision maker ("CODM") is our Chief Executive Officer. Our CODM relies on internal management reporting that analyzes consolidated results to the net earnings level and
operating segment's Adjusted EBITDA. Our CODM has ultimate responsibility for enterprise decisions. Our CODM determines, in particular, resource allocation for, and monitors the performance
of, the consolidated enterprise, the Motorhome segment, and the Towable segment. The Motorhome segment management and Towable segment management have responsibility for operating
decisions, allocating resources, and assessing performance within their respective segments. The accounting policies of both reportable segments are the same and are described in Note 1,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018.

We evaluate the performance of our reportable segments based on Adjusted EBITDA. EBITDA is defined as net income before interest expense, provision for income taxes, and depreciation and
amortization expense. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net income before interest expense, provision for income taxes, depreciation and amortization expense, and other adjustments made in
order to present comparable results from period to period. Examples of items excluded from Adjusted EBITDA include acquisition-related costs and non-operating income.
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The following table shows information by reportable segment:

Three Months Ended

November 24,

November 25,

(in thousands) 2018 2017

Net Revenues

Motorhome 181,328 188,197

Towable 292,833 259,665

Corporate / All Other 19,487 2,159
Consolidated 493,648 450,021

Adjusted EBITDA

Motorhome 11,976 4,900

Towable 30,828 33,392

Corporate / All Other (4,351) (2,881)
Consolidated 38,453 35,411

Capital Expenditures

Motorhome 3,192 3,107

Towable 8,877 2,250

Corporate / All Other 702 —
Consolidated 12,771 5,357

November 24, August 25,

(in thousands) 2018 2018

Total Assets

Motorhome 303,984 322,048

Towable 624,445 626,588

Corporate / All Other 101,544 103,169
Consolidated 1,029,973 1,051,805

Reconciliation of net income to consolidated Adjusted EBITDA:

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended

November 24, 2018

November 25, 2017

Net income
Interest expense
Provision for income taxes
Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
EBITDA
Acquisition-related costs
Non-operating income
Adjusted EBITDA

22,161 17,958
4,501 4,781
6,726 8,560
3,169 2,130
2,659 2,055

39,216 35,484

— 50
(763) (123)
38,453 35,411
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Note 3: Revenue

The following table disaggregates revenue by reportable segment and product category:

Three Months Ended

November 24, November 25,
(in thousands) 2018 2017
Net Revenues
Motorhome:
Class A $ 48,678 $ 74,205
Class B 68,720 29,120
Class C 56,142 76,775
Other® 7,788 8,097
Total Motorhome 181,328 188,197
Towable:
Fifth Wheel 162,749 144,114
Travel Trailer 125,626 112,725
Other® 4,458 2,826
Total Towable 292,833 259,665
Corporate / All Other:
Other® 19,487 2,159
Total Corporate / All Other 19,487 2,159
Consolidated $ 493,648 % 450,021

(1) Relates to parts and accessories and services.
(2) Relates to marine and specialty vehicle units, parts and accessories, and services.

We generate all of our operating revenue from contracts with customers. Our primary source of revenue is generated through the sale of manufactured motorized units, non-motorized towable
units, and marine units to our independent dealer network (our customer). We also generate income through the sale of certain parts and services, acting as the principal in these arrangements.
We apply the new revenue standard requirements to a portfolio of contracts (or performance obligations) with similar characteristics for transactions where it is expected that the effects on the
financial statements of applying the revenue recognition guidance to the portfolio would not differ materially from applying this guidance to the individual contracts (or performance obligations)
within that portfolio. Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to our customers, in an amount that reflects the transaction price consideration that we
expect to receive in exchange for those goods or services. Control refers to the ability of the customer to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of, the remaining benefits from the goods or
services. Our transaction price consideration is fixed, unless otherwise disclosed below as variable consideration. We made an accounting policy election so that our revenue excludes sales and
usage-based taxes collected.

Unit revenue

Unit revenue is recognized at a point-in-time when control passes, which generally occurs when the unit is shipped or picked-up from our manufacturing facilities to the customer, which is
consistent with our past practice. Our payment terms are typically at the point of shipment, and do not include a significant financing component. The amount of consideration received and
recorded to revenue varies with changes in marketing incentives and offers to our customers. These marketing incentives and offers to our customers are considered variable consideration. We
adjust the estimate of revenue at the earlier of when the most likely amount of consideration we expect to receive changes or when the consideration becomes fixed.

Our contracts include some incidental items that are immaterial in the context of the contract. We have made an accounting policy election to not assess whether promised goods or services are
performance obligations if they are immaterial in the context of the contract with the customer. We have made an accounting policy to account for any shipping and handling costs that occur after
the transfer of control as a fulfillment cost that is accrued when control is transferred. Warranty obligations associated with the sale of a unit are assurance-type warranties that are a guarantee of
the unit’s intended functionality and, therefore, do not represent a distinct performance obligation within the context of the contract. Contract costs incurred related to the sale of manufactured
units are expensed at the point-in-time when the related revenue is recognized.

We do not have material contract assets or liabilities. We establish allowances for uncollectible receivables based on historical collection trends and write-off history.
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Concentration of Risk

None of our dealer organizations accounted for more than 10% of our net revenue for the first quarter of Fiscal 2019 or the first quarter of 2018.
Note 4: Derivatives, Investments, and Fair Value Measurements

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

We account for fair value measurements in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measurement, and expands disclosure about fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. In instances in which the
inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement has been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement in its entirety. Our assessment of the significance of a particular item to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, including the consideration of inputs
specific to the asset or liability.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy contains three levels as follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices that are available in active markets for the identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Other observable inputs available at the measurement date, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, either directly or indirectly, including:
*  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
*  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in nonactive markets;
« Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and
« Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by other observable market data.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable market data and reflect the use of significant management judgment. These values are generally determined using
pricing models for which the assumptions utilize management’s estimates of market participant assumptions.

The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy our financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis at November 24,
2018 and August 25, 2018 according to the valuation techniques we used to determine their fair values:

Fair Value at Fair Value Hierarchy
November 24,
(in thousands) 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets that fund deferred compensation:
Domestic equity funds $ 996 $ 928 % 68 $ —
International equity funds 141 100 41 —
Fixed income funds 215 61 154 —
Interest rate swap contract 1,930 — 1,930 —
Total assets at fair value $ 3,282 $ 1,089 $ 2193 % —
Fair Value at Fair Value Hierarchy
August 25,
(in thousands) 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets that fund deferred compensation:
Domestic equity funds $ 1,143 $ 1,114  $ 29 3%
International equity funds 139 120 19 —
Fixed income funds 223 132 91 —
Interest rate swap contract 1,959 — 1,959 —
Total assets at fair value $ 3464  $ 1,366 $ 2,098 $ —

11



Table of Contents

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument:

Assets that fund deferred compensation

Our assets that fund deferred compensation are marketable equity securities measured at fair value using quoted market prices and primarily consist of equity-based mutual funds. These
securities are primarily classified as Level 1 as they are traded in an active market for which closing stock prices are readily available. These securities fund the Executive Share Option Plan and
the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. Refer to Note 10, Employee and Retiree Benefits, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018 for additional information regarding these plans.

The proportion of the assets that will fund options which expire within a year are included in Prepaid expenses and other assets in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The remaining assets are classified as non-current and are included in Other assets.

Interest Rate Swap Contract

Under the terms of our Credit Agreement, as defined in Note 9, Long-Term Debt, we were previously required to hedge a portion of the floating interest rate exposure. In accordance with this
requirement, on January 23, 2017, we entered into an interest rate swap contract, which effectively fixed our interest rate on our $300.0 million term loan agreement ("Term Loan") for a notional
amount that reduces each December during the swap contract. As of November 24, 2018, we had $170.0 million of our Term Loan fixed at an interest rate of 5.32%. As of August 25, 2018, we
had $170.0 million of our Term Loan fixed at an interest rate of 5.32%. The swap contract expires on December 8, 2020.

The fair value of the interest rate swap is classified as Level 2 as it is corroborated based on observable market data. The asset is included in Other assets on the Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets. The change in value was predominately recorded to Accumulated other comprehensive income on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets since the interest rate swap has
been designated for hedge accounting.

Assets and Liabilities that are measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

Our non-financial assets, which include goodwill, intangible assets, and property, plant and equipment, are not required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. However, if certain
triggering events occur, or if an annual impairment test is required, we must evaluate the non-financial asset for impairment. If an impairment has occurred, the asset is required to be recorded at
the estimated fair value. No impairments were recorded for non-financial assets in the first quarter of Fiscal 2019 or the first quarter of 2018.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments, other than those presented in the disclosures above, include cash, receivables, accounts payable, other payables, and long-term debt. The fair values of cash,

receivables, accounts payable, and other payables approximated carrying values because of the short-term nature of these instruments. If these instruments were measured at fair value in the
financial statements, they would be classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. See Note 9, Long-Term Debt, for information about the fair value of our long-term debt.
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Note 5: Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

November 24, August 25,
(in thousands) 2018 2018
Finished goods $ 44602 $ 26,513
Work-in-process 75,072 68,339
Raw materials 111,147 139,039
Total 230,821 233,891
Less last-in, first-out ("LIFO") reserve 39,360 38,763
Inventories $ 191,461 $ 195,128
Inventory valuation methods consist of the following:
November 24, August 25,
(in thousands) 2018 2018
LIFO basis $ 178,377 $ 176,215
First-in, first-out basis 52,444 57,676
Total $ 230,821 $ 233,891
The above value of inventories, before reduction for the LIFO reserve, approximates replacement cost at the respective dates.
Note 6: Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and consists of the following:
November 24, August 25,
(in thousands) 2018 2018
Land $ 6,747 $ 6,747
Buildings and building improvements 102,478 94,622
Machinery and equipment 107,839 105,663
Software 24,920 23,388
Transportation 8,845 8,837
Property, plant, and equipment, gross 250,829 239,257
Less accumulated depreciation 140,617 138,064
Property, plant, and equipment, net $ 110,212  $ 101,193
Depreciation expense was $3.2 million and $2.1 million during the first quarters of Fiscal 2019 and 2018, respectively.
Note 7: Goodwill and Intangible Assets
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment were as follows for the first quarters of Fiscal 2019 and 2018:
(in thousands) Towable Corporate / All Other Total
Balance, August 26, 2017 $ 242,728 $ —  $ 242,728
Grand Design purchase price adjustment® 1,956 — 1,956
Balance, November 25, 2017 $ 244,684 $ — % 244,684
Balance, August 25, 2018 $ 244,684 $ 29,686 $ 274,370
Chris-Craft purchase price adjustment® — 702 702
Balance, November 24, 2018 $ 244,684 $ 30,388 $ 275,072

(1) Refer to Note 2, Business Combinations, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018 for additional information.
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(2) Purchase price adjustment made for working capital. For additional information related to the acquisition of Chris-Craft USA, Inc., refer to Note 2, Business Combinations, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018.

Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization, consist of the following:

November 24, 2018

August 25, 2018

Weighted
Average Life- Accumulated Accumulated

(in thousands) Years Cost Amortization Cost Amortization
Trade names Indefinite $ 177,250 177,250
Dealer networks 12.2 95,581 $ 14,288 95,581 $ 12,328
Backlog 0.5 19,527 19,527 19,527 19,135
Non-compete agreements 4.1 5,347 2,330 5,347 2,084
Leasehold interest-favorable 8.1 2,000 502 2,000 441

Other intangible assets, gross 299,705 36,647 299,705 33,988
Less accumulated amortization 36,647 33,988

Other intangible assets, net $ 263,058 265,717
The weighted average remaining amortization period for intangible assets as of November 24, 2018 was approximately 11 years.
Remaining estimated aggregate annual amortization expense by fiscal year is as follows:
(in thousands) Amount
Fiscal 2019 $ 6,828
Fiscal 2020 9,032
Fiscal 2021 9,032
Fiscal 2022 8,405
Fiscal 2023 8,197
Thereafter 44,314

Total amortization expense remaining $ 85,808

Note 8: Warranty

We provide certain service and warranty on our products. From time to time, we also voluntarily incur costs for certain warranty-type expenses occurring after the normal warranty period to help
protect the reputation of our products and the goodwill of our customers. Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the time of sale and are based upon historical warranty and

service claims experience. Adjustments are made to accruals as claim data and cost experience becomes available.

In addition to the costs associated with the contractual warranty coverage provided on our products, we also occasionally incur costs as a result of additional service actions not covered by our
warranties, including product recalls and customer satisfaction actions. Although we estimate and reserve for the cost of these service actions, there can be no assurance that expense levels will

remain at current levels or such reserves will continue to be adequate.

Changes in our product warranty liability are as follows:

Three Months Ended

November 24,

November 25,

(in thousands) 2018 2017

Balance at beginning of period 40,498 $ 30,805
Provision 10,757 9,953
Claims paid (9,952) (8,258)

Balance at end of period 41,303 % 32,500
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Note 9: Long-Term Debt

On November 8, 2016, we entered into a $125.0 million credit facility ("ABL") and a $300.0 million Term Loan with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. ("Credit Agreement"). On December 8, 2017, we
amended our Credit Agreement, which decreased the interest rate spread on the Term Loan and the ABL. As of September 21, 2018, the amount that may be borrowed under the ABL was
increased to $165.0 million.

The Credit Agreement contains certain financial covenants. As of November 24, 2018, we are in compliance with all financial covenants of the Credit Agreement.

The components of long-term debt are as follows:

November 24, August 25,
(in thousands) 2018 2018
ABL $ 14 $ 38,532
Term Loan 260,000 260,000
Long-term debt, excluding debt issuance costs 260,014 298,532
Debt issuance cost, net (6,752) (7,091)
Long-term debt $ 253,262 % 291,441

The fair value of long-term debt, excluding debt issuance costs, approximated the carrying values as of November 24, 2018 and August 25, 2018 as interest is at variable market rates.

Aggregate contractual maturities of debt in future fiscal years are as follows:

(in thousands) Amount
Fiscal 2019 =
Fiscal 2020 10,250
Fiscal 2021 15,000
Fiscal 2022 15,000
Fiscal 2023 219,750
Total Term Loan 260,000
Note 10: Employee and Retiree Benefits
Deferred compensation liabilities are as follows:
November 24, August 25,
(in thousands) 2018 2018
Non-qualified deferred compensation 14,187 14,831
Supplemental executive retirement plan 2,324 2,309
Executive share option plan 736 935
Executive deferred compensation plan 548 421
Officer stock-based compensation — 1,528
Deferred compensation benefits 17,795 20,024
Less current portion® 3,581 4,742
Deferred compensation benefits, net of current portion 14,214 15,282

(1) Included in Accrued compensation on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Note 11: Stock-Based Compensation

We have a 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and Incentive Compensation Plan (as amended, the "Plan") in place as approved by shareholders, which allows us to grant or issue non-
qualified stock options, incentive stock options, share awards, and other equity compensation to key employees and to non-employee directors.

Beginning with our annual grant of restricted stock units in October 2018, we attach dividend equivalents to our restricted stock units equal to dividends payable on the same number of shares of

WGO common stock during the applicable period. Dividend
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equivalents, settled in cash, accrue on restricted stock unit awards during the vesting period. No dividend equivalents are paid on any restricted stock units that are forfeited prior to the vesting
date.

Stock-based compensation expense was $2.5 million and $0.8 million during the first quarters of Fiscal 2019 and 2018, respectively. Compensation expense is recognized over the requisite
service period of the award.

Note 12: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Repurchase Commitments

Generally, manufacturers in our industries enter into repurchase agreements with lending institutions which have provided wholesale floorplan financing to dealers. Most dealers are financed on a
"floorplan” basis under which a bank or finance company lends the dealer all, or substantially all, of the purchase price, collateralized by a security interest in the units purchased.

Our repurchase agreements generally provide that, in the event of default by the dealer on the agreement to pay the lending institution, we will repurchase the financed merchandise. The terms of
these agreements, which generally can last up to 24 months, provide that our liability will be the lesser of remaining principal owed by the dealer to the lending institution, or dealer invoice less
periodic reductions based on the time since the date of the original invoice. Our liability cannot exceed 100% of the dealer invoice. In certain instances, we also repurchase inventory from our
dealers due to state law or regulatory requirements that govern voluntary or involuntary relationship terminations. Although laws vary from state to state, some states have laws in place that
require manufacturers of recreational vehicles or boats to repurchase current inventory if a dealership exits the business. Our total contingent liability on all repurchase agreements was
approximately $933.4 million and $879.0 million at November 24, 2018 and August 25, 2018.

Repurchased sales are not recorded as a revenue transaction, but the net difference between the original repurchase price and the resale price are recorded against the loss reserve, which is a
deduction from gross revenue. Our loss reserve for repurchase commitments contains uncertainties because the calculation requires management to make assumptions and apply judgment
regarding a number of factors. Our risk of loss related to these repurchase commitments is significantly reduced by the potential resale value of any products that are subject to repurchase and is
spread over numerous dealers and lenders. The aggregate contingent liability related to our repurchase agreements represents all financed dealer inventory at the period reporting date subject to
a repurchase agreement, net of the greater of periodic reductions per the agreement or dealer principal payments. Based on these repurchase agreements and our historical loss experience, we
establish an associated loss reserve which is included in Accrued expenses: Other on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. Our accrued losses on repurchases were $0.9 million and
$0.9 million at November 24, 2018 and August 25, 2018, respectively. Repurchase risk is affected by the credit worthiness of our dealer network, and we do not believe there is a reasonable
likelihood that there will be a material change in the estimates or assumptions used to establish the loss reserve for repurchase commitments.

There was no material activity related to repurchase agreements during the three months ended November 24, 2018 and November 25, 2017.

Litigation

We are involved in various legal proceedings which are ordinary and routine litigation incidental to our business, some of which are covered in whole or in part by insurance. While we believe the
ultimate disposition of litigation will not have material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or liquidity, there exists the possibility that such litigation may have an impact on
our results for a particular reporting period in which litigation effects become probable and reasonably estimable. Though we do not believe there is a reasonable likelihood that there will be a
material change related to these matters, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties and management'’s view of these matters may change in the future.

Note 13: Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under ASC 740, Income Taxes. The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and
deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns.

Our effective tax rate decreased to 23.3% for the three months ended November 24, 2018 from 32.3% for the three months ended November 25, 2017 due primarily to the enactment of the 2017
Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("Tax Act") on December 22, 2017. The rate reduction was primarily due to the Tax Act decrease in the Federal rate offset by the repeal of the domestic production
activities deduction and by a reduced benefit from stock-based compensation activity in the current quarter.

ASU 2018-05, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118, provided guidance for companies that allows for a measurement

period of up to one year after the enactment date of the Tax Act to finalize the recording of the related tax impacts under ASC 740, Income Taxes. In accordance with this guidance, a company
must reflect the income tax effect of those aspects of the Tax Act for which the accounting under ASC 740 is complete. To the extent that
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a company's accounting for certain income tax effects of the Tax Act is incomplete, but it is able to determine a reasonable estimate, the company must record a provisional estimate in the

financial statements.

In accordance with ASC 740, we recorded non-cash provisional estimates to income tax expense in Fiscal 2018 as a result of revaluing all deferred tax assets and liabilities at the newly enacted
Federal corporate income tax rate. We have not made any measurement period adjustments related to these items during the first three months of Fiscal 2019 and are materially complete in

analyzing and recording all aspects of the enactment of the Tax Act.

We file a U.S. Federal tax return as well as returns in various international and state jurisdictions. Although certain years are no longer subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service
("IRS") and various state taxing authorities, net operating loss carryforwards generated in those years may still be adjusted upon examination by the IRS or state taxing authorities. As of
November 24, 2018, our Federal returns from Fiscal 2015 to present continue to be subject to review by the IRS. With limited exception, our state returns from Fiscal 2014 to present continue to
be subject to review by the state taxing jurisdictions. Several years may lapse before an uncertain tax position is audited and finally resolved, and it is difficult to predict the outcome of such

audits.

It is our policy to recognize interest and penalties accrued relative to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. Total reserves for uncertain tax positions were not material.

Note 14: Income Per Share

The following table reflects the calculation of basic and diluted income per share:

Three Months Ended

November 24,

November 25,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2018 2017
Numerator
Net income $ 22,161 % 17,958
Denominator
Weighted average common shares outstanding 31,567 31,614
Dilutive impact of stock compensation awards 247 158
Weighted average common shares outstanding, assuming dilution 31,814 31,772
Anti-dilutive securities excluded from Weighted average common shares outstanding, assuming dilution 90 73
Basic income per common share $ 070 $ 0.57
Diluted income per common share $ 070 $ 0.57
Anti-dilutive securities were not included in the computation of diluted income per common share because they are considered anti-dilutive under the treasury stock method.
Note 15: Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income ("AOCI") by component, net of tax, were:
Three Months Ended
November 24, 2018 November 25, 2017
Defined Benefit Defined Benefit

(in thousands) Pension Items Interest Rate Swap Total Pension Items Interest Rate Swap Total
Balance at beginning of period $ (591) $ 1,483 $ 892 % (509) $ (514) $ (1,023)

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications — (22) (22) — 634 634

Amounts reclassified from AOCI 8 — 8 6 — 6

Net current-period OCI 8 (22) (14) 6 634 640

Balance at end of period $ (583) $ 1,461 $ 878 % (503) $ 120 % (383)
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Reclassifications out of AOCI in net periodic benefit costs, net of tax, were:

Location on Consolidated Statements

(in thousands) of Income and Comprehensive Income

Three Months Ended

November 24,
2018

November 25,
2017

Amortization of net actuarial loss SG&A
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Unless the context otherwise requires, the use of the terms "Winnebago Industries,"” "we," "us," and "our" refers to Winnebago Industries, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”") is intended to provide a reader of our financial statements with a narrative from the perspective
of our management on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, and certain other factors that may affect our future results. Unless otherwise noted, transactions and other factors
significantly impacting our financial condition, results of operations, and liquidity are discussed in order of magnitude.

Our MD&A should be read in conjunction with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018, (including the information presented therein under Risk Factors), as well
as our reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K and other publicly available information. All amounts herein are unaudited.

Overview

Winnebago Industries, Inc. is one of the leading U.S. manufacturers with a diversified portfolio of recreation vehicles ("RV"s) and marine products used primarily in leisure travel and outdoor
recreation activities. We produce our motorhome units in manufacturing facilities in lowa and Oregon; our towable units in Indiana; and our marine units in Florida. We distribute our RV and
marine products primarily through independent dealers throughout the U.S. and Canada, who then retail the products to the end consumer. We also distribute our marine products internationally
through independent dealers, who then retail the products to the end consumer.

Non-GAAP Reconciliation

This MD&A includes financial information prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. ("GAAP"), as well as certain adjusted or non-GAAP financial measures
such as EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA. EBITDA is defined as net income before interest expense, provision for income taxes, and depreciation and amortization expense. Adjusted EBITDA is
defined as net income before interest expense, provision for income taxes, depreciation and amortization expense, and other adjustments made in order to present comparable results from
period to period. These non-GAAP financial measures, which are not calculated or presented in accordance with GAAP, have been provided as information supplemental and in addition to the
financial measures presented in accordance with GAAP. Such non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered superior to, as a substitute for, or as an alternative to, and should be
considered in conjunction with, the GAAP financial measures presented herein. The non-GAAP financial measures presented may differ from similar measures used by other companies.

Refer to the Consolidated Performance Summary within Results of Operations - First Three Months of Fiscal 2019 Compared to the First Three Months of Fiscal 2018 for a detailed reconciliation
of items that impacted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA. We have included this non-GAAP performance measure as a comparable measure to illustrate the effect of non-recurring transactions
occurring during the reported periods and improve comparability of our results from period to period. We believe Adjusted EBITDA provides meaningful supplemental information about our
operating performance because this measure excludes amounts that we do not consider part of our core operating results when assessing our performance. Examples of items excluded from
Adjusted EBITDA include acquisition-related costs and non-operating income.

Management uses these non-GAAP financial measures (a) to evaluate our historical and prospective financial performance and trends as well as our performance relative to competitors and
peers; (b) to measure operational profitability on a consistent basis; (c) in presentations to the members of our board of directors to enable our board of directors to have the same measurement
basis of operating performance as is used by management in its assessments of performance and in forecasting and budgeting for our company; (d) to evaluate potential acquisitions; and (e) to
ensure compliance with covenants and restricted activities under the terms of our Credit Agreement. We believe these non-GAAP financial measures are frequently used by securities analysts,
investors, and other interested parties to evaluate companies in our industry.

Reportable Segments

In the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2018, we revised our segment presentation. We have five operating segments: 1) Winnebago motorhomes, 2) Winnebago towables, 3) Grand Design towables, 4)
Winnebago specialty vehicles, and 5) Chris-Craft marine. We evaluate performance based on each operating segment's Adjusted EBITDA, as defined above, which excludes certain corporate
administration expenses and non-operating income and expense.

Our two reportable segments include: 1) Motorhome (comprised of products that include a motorized chassis as well as other related manufactured products and services) and 2) Towable

(comprised of products which are not motorized and are generally towed by another vehicle as well as other related manufactured products and services), which is an aggregation of the
Winnebago towables and Grand Design towables operating segments.
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The Corporate / All Other category includes the Winnebago specialty vehicles and Chris-Craft marine operating segments as well as expenses related to certain corporate administration
expenses for the oversight of the enterprise. These expenses include items such as corporate leadership and administration costs. Previously, these expenses were allocated to each operating
segment.

Prior year segment information has been reclassified to conform to the current reportable segment presentation. The reclassifications included removing the corporate administration expenses
from both the Motorhome and Towable reportable segments and removing Winnebago specialty vehicles from the Motorhome reportable segment, as we began to dedicate leadership and focus
on these operations separately from our Winnebago motorhomes operations.

Industry Trends
Key reported statistics for the North American RV industry are as follows:
« Wholesale unit shipments: RV product delivered to the dealers, which is reported monthly by the Recreation Vehicle Industry Association ("RVIA")

< Retail unit registrations: consumer purchases of RVs from dealers, which is reported by Stat Surveys

We track RV Industry conditions using these key statistics to monitor trends and evaluate and understand our performance relative to the overall industry. The rolling twelve months shipment and
retail information for 2018 and 2017, as noted below, illustrates that the RV industry continues to grow at the wholesale and retail level. We believe retail demand is the key driver to continued
growth in the industry.

US and Canada Industry

Wholesale Unit Shipments per RVIA Retail Unit Registrations per Stat Surveys
Rolling 12 Months through October Rolling 12 Months through October
2018 2017 Unit Change % Change 2018 2017 Unit Change % Change
Motorhome® 59,947 61,421 (1,474) (2.4)% 57,829 56,758 1,071 1.9%
Towable® 428,489 420,857 7,632 1.8% 414,898 390,912 23,986 6.1%
Combined 488,436 482,278 6,158 1.3% 472,727 447,670 25,057 5.6%

(1) Motorhome: Class A, B and C products.
(2) Towable: Fifth wheel and travel trailer products.

The most recent RVIA wholesale shipment forecasts for calendar year 2019, as noted in the table below, indicate that industry shipments are most likely expected to decline in 2019. The RV
sales outlook is based on anticipated increases in inflation and interest rates and rising costs of production, partially offset by strong job and wage growth.

Calendar Year

2019 2018
Wholesale Unit Shipment Forecast per RVIA®) Forecast Actual Unit Change % Change
Aggressive 466,000 479,000 (13,000) (2.7)%
Most likely 453,200 479,000 (25,800) (5.4)%
Conservative 439,800 479,000 (39,200) (8.2)%

(1) Prepared by Dr. Richard Curtin of the University of Michigan Consumer Survey Research Center for RVIA and reported in the Roadsigns RV Winter 2018 Industry Forecast Issue.

Market Share

Our retail unit market share, as reported by Stat Surveys based on state records, is illustrated below. Note that this data is subject to adjustment and is continuously updated.

Rolling 12 Months through October Calendar Year
US and Canada 2018 20170 20170 2016 2015
Motorhome A, B, C 15.6% 16.3% 16.2% 18.0% 20.5%
Travel trailer and fifth wheels 7.7% 6.0% 6.1% 1.7% 0.9%

(1) Includes retail unit market share for Grand Design since its acquisition on November 8, 2016.
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Facility Expansion

During Fiscal 2017, our Board of Directors approved two large facility expansion projects to increase production capacity in the fast growing Towable segment. The Grand Design expansion
project consisted of two new production facilities, which were completed in Fiscal 2018. The facility expansion in the Winnebago towables division is expected to be completed in the first half of
Fiscal 2019.

Enterprise Resource Planning System

In the second quarter of Fiscal 2015, our Board of Directors approved the strategic initiative of implementing an enterprise resource planning ("ERP") system to replace our legacy business
applications. The new ERP platform will provide better support for our changing business needs and plans for future growth. Our initial cost estimates have grown for additional needs of the
business, such as the opportunity to integrate the ERP system with additional manufacturing systems. The project includes software, external implementation assistance, and increased internal
staffing directly related to this initiative. We anticipate that approximately 40% of the cost will be expensed in the period incurred and 60% will be capitalized and depreciated over its useful life.

The following table illustrates the cumulative project costs:

Three Months Ended Fiscal Year
November 24, Cumulative
(in thousands) 2018 2018 2017 2016 2015 Investment
Capitalized $ 1,533 $ 5,941 $ 1,881 $ 7,798 % 3291 % 20,444 58.8%
Expensed 1,151 2,107 2,601 5,930 2,528 14,317 41.2%
Total $ 2,684 $ 8,048 $ 4,482 $ 13,728 $ 5,819 $ 34,761 100.0%

Results of Operations - First Three Months of Fiscal 2019 Compared to the First Three Months of Fiscal 2018
Consolidated Performance Summary

The following is an analysis of changes in key items included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income for the three months ended November 24, 2018 compared to
the three months ended November 25, 2017:

Three Months Ended

(in thousands, except percent and per share November 24, November 25,

data) 2018 % of Revenues® 2017 % of Revenues® $ Change % Change
Net revenues $ 493,648 100.0 % $ 450,021 100.0 % $ 43,627 9.7 %
Cost of goods sold 422,652 85.6 % 387,190 86.0 % 35,462 9.2%
Gross profit 70,996 14.4 % 62,831 14.0 % 8,165 13.0 %
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 35,712 72% 29,600 6.6 % 6,112 20.6 %
Amortization of intangible assets 2,659 0.5 % 2,055 0.5 % 604 29.4 %
Total operating expenses 38,371 7.8% 31,655 7.0% 6,716 21.2%
Operating income 32,625 6.6 % 31,176 6.9 % 1,449 4.6 %
Interest expense 4,501 0.9 % 4,781 11% (280) (5.9)%
Non-operating income (763) (0.2)% (123) —% 640 (520.3)%
Income before income taxes 28,887 5.9 % 26,518 5.9 % 2,369 8.9 %
Provision for income taxes 6,726 1.4% 8,560 1.9% (1,834) 21.49)%
Net income $ 22,161 4.5 % $ 17,958 4.0 % $ 4,203 23.4%
Diluted income per share $ 0.70 $ 0.57 $ 0.13 22.8%
Diluted average shares outstanding 31,814 31,772 42 0.1%

(1) Percentages may not add due to rounding differences.

Consolidated net revenues increased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 primarily due to an increase in our Towable segment unit volume,
average selling price ("ASP") increases, and the acquisition of Chris-Craft in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2018. This was partially offset by a decrease in unit volume in our Motorhome segment.
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Gross profit as a percentage of revenue increased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 due to a decrease in our Motorized manufacturing
costs as a percentage of revenue due to higher costs in the prior year related to the ramp-up of our West Coast production facility and new product start-up. This was partially offset by margin
pressure from inflationary cost pressures across all segments, but most notably in the Towable segment.

Operating expenses increased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 due to increased investments in our business as well as an increase in
professional fees.

Interest expense decreased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 due to our Credit Agreement amendment during the second quarter of Fiscal
2018. This amendment resulted in a decrease to the interest rate spread by 1.0% on the Term Loan and 0.25% on the ABL.

Non-operating income increased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 due to net proceeds received for company-owned life insurance policies.
The effective tax rate decreased to 23.3% for the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to 32.3% for the first three months of Fiscal 2018 due primarily to the enactment of the 2017 Tax Cuts
and Jobs Act ("Tax Act") on December 22, 2017. The rate reduction was primarily due to the decrease in the Federal rate provided by the Tax Act offset by the repeal of the domestic production

activities deduction and by a reduced benefit from stock-based compensation activity in the first three months of Fiscal 2019.

Net income and diluted income per share increased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 primarily due to revenue growth, an increased gross
profit rate and the lower effective income tax rate, offset slightly by an increase in operating expenses.

Non-GAAP Reconciliation
The following table reconciles net income to consolidated EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for the first three months ended November 24, 2018 and November 25, 2017:

Three Months Ended

November 24, November 25,
(in thousands) 2018 2017
Net income $ 22,161 $ 17,958
Interest expense 4,501 4,781
Provision for income taxes 6,726 8,560
Depreciation 3,169 2,130
Amortization of intangible assets 2,659 2,055
EBITDA 39,216 35,484
Acquisition-related costs — 50
Non-operating income (763) (123)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 38,453 $ 35,411
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Reportable Segment Performance Summary
Motorhome

The following is an analysis of key changes in our Motorhome segment for the first three months ended November 24, 2018 compared to the first three months ended November 25, 2017 and as
of November 24, 2018 compared to November 25, 2017:

Three Months Ended

November 24,

November 25,

(in thousands, except ASP) 2018 % of Revenues 2017 % of Revenues $ Change % Change
Net revenues 181,328 $ 188,197 $ (6,869) (3.6)%
Adjusted EBITDA 11,976 6.6% 4,900 2.6% 7,076 144.4 %
ASP 98,690 91,246 7,444 8.2%
Three Months Ended
November 24, November 25,
Unit deliveries 2018 Product Mix® 2017 Product Mix® Unit Change % Change
Class A 422 23.2% 723 35.8% (301) (41.6)%
Class B 719 39.5% 370 18.3% 349 94.3 %
Class C 678 37.3% 926 45.9% (248) (26.8)%
Total motorhomes 1,819 100.0% 2,019 100.0% (200) (9.9)%
November 24, November 25,
($ in thousands) 2018 2017 Change % Change
Backlog®
Units 1,961 2,632 (671) (25.5)%
Dollars 191,632 $ 250,757 $ (59,125) (23.6)%
Dealer Inventory
Units 4,458 4,226 232 55%

(1) Percentages may not add due to rounding differences.
(2) We include in our backlog all accepted orders from dealers to generally be shipped within the next six months. Orders in backlog can be cancelled or postponed at the option of the dealer at any time without penalty
and, therefore, backlog may not necessarily be an accurate measure of future sales.

Net revenues decreased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 due to a decrease in the number of units sold, partially offset by increased
pricing.

Unit deliveries decreased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 driven by our Class A and Class C products, partially offset by our Class B
products. Additionally, we have seen a decrease in the backlog volumes in the first quarter of Fiscal 2019 as compared to the first quarter of Fiscal 2018 due to less demand for our Class A and C
products, offset partially by our Class B products. Dealer inventory increased slightly due to the strong shipment of our Class B products.

Adjusted EBITDA increased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 due to pricing increases in the second half of Fiscal 2018 and a reduction in
our manufacturing costs as a percentage of revenue due to higher costs in the prior year related to the ramp-up of our West Coast production facility and new product start-ups.

23



Table of Contents

Towable

The following is an analysis of key changes in our Towable segment for the first three months ended November 24, 2018 compared to the first three months ended November 25, 2017 and as of

November 24, 2018 compared to November 25, 2017:

Three Months Ended

November 24,

November 25,

(in thousands, except ASP) 2018 % of Revenues 2017 % of Revenues $ Change % Change
Net revenues 292,833 259,665 $ 33,168 12.8 %
Adjusted EBITDA 30,828 10.5% 33,392 12.9% (2,564) (7.7)%
ASP 32,117 30,557 1,560 5.1%
Three Months Ended
November 24, November 25,
Unit deliveries 2018 Product Mix® 2017 Product Mix® Unit Change % Change
Travel trailer 5,836 62.2% 5,349 61.7% 487 9.1%
Fifth wheel 3,549 37.8% 3,327 38.3% 222 6.7 %
Total towables 9,385 100.0% 8,676 100.0% 709 8.2%
November 24, November 25,
($ in thousands) 2018 2017 Change % Change
Backlog®
Units 9,199 9,955 (756) (7.6)%
Dollars 327,724 341,065 $ (13,341) (3.9)%
Dealer Inventory
Units 16,662 12,050 4,612 38.3%

(1) Percentages may not add due to rounding differences.
(2) We include in our backlog all accepted orders from dealers to generally be shipped within the next six months. Orders in backlog can be cancelled or postponed at the option of the dealer at any time without penalty
and, therefore, backlog may not necessarily be an accurate measure of future sales.

Net revenues increased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 due to strong organic growth.

Unit deliveries increased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 primarily due to volume growth in excess of recent industry trends. Our Towable
market share increased from 6.0% to 7.7% when comparing shipments during the twelve-month trailing periods ended September 2017 and September 2018. Towable ASP increased slightly due
to price increases during the second half of Fiscal 2018.

Adjusted EBITDA decreased in the first three months of Fiscal 2019 compared to the first three months of Fiscal 2018 primarily due to increased material costs and higher dealer program costs
partially offset by organic volume growth. Shipments grew faster than the industry as a result of greater penetration of our new products and further expansion of our distribution base.
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Analysis of Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Resources
Cash Flows
The following table summarizes our cash flows from total operations for the first three months ended November 24, 2018 and November 25, 2017:

Three Months Ended

November 24, November 25,
(in thousands) 2018 2017
Total cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 54,171  $ 29,458
Investing activities (13,162) (5,322)
Financing activities (42,649) (5,613)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (1,640) $ 18,523
Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities increased for the first three months ended November 24, 2018 due to an increase in net income and improvements in net working capital.

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities for the first three months ended November 24, 2018 consisted primarily of capital expenditures related to the capacity expansions taking place in our Towable
segment. Cash used in investing activities for the first three months ended November 25, 2017 consisted primarily of capital expenditures.

Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities for the first three months ended November 24, 2018 consisted of payments on the Credit Agreement, dividends payments, and share repurchases; these were
partially offset by cash proceeds on the Credit Agreement. Cash used in financing activities for the first three months ended November 25, 2017 consisted of payments on the Credit Agreement
and share repurchases.

Debt and Capital

As of September 21, 2018, we have a debt agreement that consists of a $300.0 million term loan agreement (“Term Loan") and a $165.0 million asset-based revolving credit facility ("ABL")
(collectively, the "Credit Agreement") with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. Refer to Note 9, Long-Term Debt, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Iltem 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018 for additional details. As of November 24, 2018, there were no material
borrowings against the ABL.

We filed a Registration Statement on Form S-3, which was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 25, 2016. Subject to market conditions, this registration
provides for the ability to offer and sell up to $35.0 million of our common stock in one or more offerings pursuant to the Registration Statement. The Registration Statement will be available for
use for three years from its effective date. We currently have no plans to offer and sell the common stock registered under this Registration Statement; however, it does provide another potential
source of liquidity to raise capital if we need it, in addition to the alternatives already in place.

Other Financial Measures

Working capital at November 24, 2018 and August 25, 2018 was $144.1 million and $167.8 million, respectively. We currently expect cash on hand, funds generated from operations, and the
borrowing available under our Credit Agreement to be sufficient to cover both short-term and long-term operating requirements.

Share Repurchases and Dividends
We repurchase our common stock and pay dividends pursuant to programs approved by our Board of Directors. Our long-term capital allocation strategy is to first fund operations and

investments in growth, maintain a debt leverage ratio within our targeted zone, maintain reasonable liquidity, and then return excess cash over time to shareholders through dividends and share
repurchases.
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On December 19, 2007, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of outstanding shares of our common stock, depending on market conditions, for an aggregate consideration of up to
$60.0 million. On October 18, 2017, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program in the amount of $70.0 million. There is no time restriction on either authorization. We
continually evaluate if share repurchases reflect a prudent use of our capital and, subject to compliance with our Credit Agreement, we may purchase shares in the future. At November 24, 2018,
we have $65.7 million remaining on our board repurchase authorization.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

There has been no material change in our contractual obligations other than in the ordinary course of business since the end of Fiscal 2018. See our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended August 25, 2018, for additional information regarding our contractual obligations and commercial commitments.

Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates

We describe our significant accounting policies in Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018. We discuss our critical accounting estimates in Iltem 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018.

There have been no significant changes in our significant accounting policies or critical accounting estimates since the end of Fiscal 2018.
New Accounting Pronouncements

For a description of new applicable accounting pronouncements, see Note 1, Basis of Presentation, of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, included in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q.

Safe Harbor Statement Under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act

Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”), provide a “safe harbor” for
forward-looking statements to encourage companies to provide prospective information about their companies. With the exception of historical information, the matters discussed in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q are forward-looking statements and may be identified by the use of words such as "anticipate," "assume," "believe," "estimate," "expect," "guidance," “intend," "outlook,"
"plan," "project," and other words and terms of similar meaning. Such statements reflect our current views and estimates with respect to future market conditions, company performance and
financial results, operational investments, business prospects, new strategies, the competitive environment, and other events. These statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from the potential results discussed in such forward-looking statements. Readers should review Item 1A, Risk Factors, of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018, for a description of important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking
statements made in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Among the factors that could cause actual results and outcomes to differ materially from those contained in such forward-looking
statements are the following: competition and new product introductions by competitors, our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel, business or production disruptions, sales order
cancellations, risk related to compliance with debt covenants and leverage ratios, stock price volatility, availability of labor, a slowdown in the economy, low consumer confidence, the effect of
global tensions, increases in interest rates, availability of credit, risk related to cyclicality and seasonality, slower than anticipated sales of new or existing products, integration of operations
relating to merger and acquisition activities generally, inadequate liquidity or capital resources, inventory and distribution channel management, our ability to innovate, our reliance on large dealer
organizations, significant increase in repurchase obligations, availability and price of fuel, availability of chassis and other key component parts, increased material and component costs,
exposure to warranty claims, ability to protect our intellectual property, exposure to product liability claims, dependence on information systems and web applications, any unexpected expenses
related to ERP, risk related to data security, governmental regulation, including for climate change, and risk related to anti-takeover provisions applicable to us and other factors. We caution that
the foregoing list of important factors is not complete. Any forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and we assume no obligation to update any forward-looking
statement that we may make.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
There have been no material changes in our primary risk exposures or management of market risks from those previously disclosed in Part Il, Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures

About Market Risk, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain "disclosure controls and procedures”, as such term is defined under Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act") Rule 13a-15(e), that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities
and Exchange Commission rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. Management necessarily applied its judgment in assessing the costs and benefits of such controls and procedures and
believes that such controls and procedures are effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Our management, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures, required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b), as of the end of the period covered by this report (the "Evaluation Date"). Based on this evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the Evaluation Date.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We are implementing an ERP system, which is expected to improve the efficiency of certain financial and related transaction processes. The implementation of an ERP system will likely affect the
processes that constitute our internal control over financial reporting and will require testing for effectiveness. As we have completed implementation of certain phases of the ERP, internal
controls over financial reporting have been tested for effectiveness with respect to the scope of the phase completed. We concluded, as part of our evaluation described in the above paragraphs,
that the implementation of ERP in these circumstances has not materially affected our internal control over financial reporting. The implementation is continuing in a phased approach and will
continue to be evaluated for effect on our internal control over financial reporting.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the first quarter of Fiscal 2019 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.

27



Table of Contents

PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION.
Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

For a description of our legal proceedings, see Note 12, Contingent Liabilities and Commitments, of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, included in this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

There have been no material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in Part I, Item 1A, Risk Factors, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018.
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

(c) Stock Repurchases

Purchases of our common stock during each fiscal month of the first quarter of Fiscal 2019 were:

Approximate Dollar Value of Shares That

Total Number of Shares  Average Price Paid Number of Shares Purchased as Part of May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or

Period Purchased® per Share Publicly Announced Plans or Programs®) Programs®
08/26/18 - 09/29/18 = $ = — 8 65,989,000
09/30/18 - 10/27/18 37,136 $ 3111 — % 65,989,000
10/28/18 - 11/24/18 11,326 $ 27.81 10,900 $ 65,685,000
Total 48,462 $ 30.33 10,900 $ 65,685,000

(1) Shares not purchased as part of a publicly announced program were repurchased from employees who vested in Company shares and elected to pay their payroll tax via the value of shares delivered as opposed to
cash.

(2) Pursuant to a combined $130.0 million share repurchase program authorized by our Board of Directors. On December 19, 2007, $60.0 million was approved, and on October 18, 2017, $70.0 million was approved.
There is no time restriction on either authorization.

Our Credit Agreement, as defined in Note 9, Long-Term Debt, of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 1, Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements,
of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, contains restrictions that may limit our ability to make distributions or payments with respect to purchases of our common stock without consent of the
lenders, except for limited purchases of our common stock from employees, in the event of a significant reduction in our EBITDA or in the event of a significant borrowing on our asset-based
revolving credit agreement.
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Item 6. Exhibits.

3a. Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3a with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018
(Commission File Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.
3b. Amended By-Laws of the Registrant previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 with the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 16, 2016 (Commission File
Number 001-06403)_and incorporated by reference herein.
10a. Amendment 4 to Credit Agreement dated as of September 21, 2018 by and among Winnebago Industries, Inc., Winnebago of Indiana, LLC, Grand Design RV, LLC,
the other Loan Parties hereto, the financial institutions party hereto as Lenders, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative Agent.
10b. Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under Winnebago Industries, Inc. 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and Incentive Compensation Plan
(fiscal 2019 awards)
10c. Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Executives)_under Winnebago Industries, Inc. 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and Incentive
Compensation Plan (fiscal 2019 awards).
10d. Form of Performance Stock Unit Agreement under Winnebago Industries, Inc. 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and Incentive Compensation Plan (fiscal
2019 awards).
10e. Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Non-Employee Director) under Winnebago Industries, Inc. 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and
Incentive Compensation Plan (fiscal 2019 awards).
10f. Form of Change in Control Agreement.
31.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS* XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definitions Linkbase Document
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

*Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following financial statements from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 24, 2018 formatted in XBRL: (i) the
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income, (ii) the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, (jii) the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, (iv) the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity, and (v) related Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
Such exhibits are deemed furnished and not filed pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

Date: December 20, 2018 By /s/ Michael J. Happe
Michael J. Happe
Chief Executive Officer, President
(Principal Executive Officer)
Date: December 20, 2018 By /s/ Bryan L. Hughes

Bryan L. Hughes
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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EXECUTION VERSION

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Amendment™), dated as
of September 21, 2018, is entered into by and among Winnebago Industries, Inc., an lowa corporation
(the “Company™), Winnebago of Indiana, LLC, an lowa limited liability company (“Winnebago of
Indiana™), Grand Design RV, LLC, an Indiana limited liability company (*Grand Design™; the Company,
Winnebago of Indiana and Grand Design are collectively referred to herein as the “Borrowers™), the other
Lean Parties party hereto, the financial institutions party hereto as Lenders, and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.AL, as Administrative Agent (the “Administrative Agent”). Capitalized terms used but not otherwise
defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Credit Agreement referenced below.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Borrowers, the other Loan Parties, the financial institutions from time to
time party thereto as Lenders (collectively, the “Lenders™) and the Administrative Agent are parties to a
Credit Agreement, dated as of November 8, 2016 (as previously amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified, the “Credit Agreement™);

WHEREAS, the Borrowers have requested that the Lenders and the Administrative
Agent agree to certain amendments to the Credit Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Lenders party hereto and the Administrative Agent have agreed to such
amendments on the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises set forth above, the terms and
conditions contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the Borrowers, the other Loan Parties party hereto, the Lenders party
hereto and the Administrative Agent hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Amendments to Credit Agreement, Effective as of the date of
satisfaction of the conditions precedent set forth in Section 2 of this Amendment, the parties hereto agree
that the Credit Agreement is amended as follows:

(a) Each Lender hereby agrees that, subject to the other terms set forth in the Loan
Documents (including, without limitation, Sections 2.09 and 9.04 of the Credit Agreement), its
Commitment shall be increased to the amount set forth opposite its name in the following table:

Lender Commitment

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A, $165,000,000.00

(b) Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to add the following new
definition thereto in the appropriate alphabetical order:

“Amendment No. 4 Effective Date™ means September 21, 2018,
(c) The definition of “Aggrepate Commitment™ set forth in Section 1.01 of the Credit

Agreement is hereby amended to amend and restate the final sentence thereof in its entirety to read as
follows:
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Subject to the other terms set forth herein, as of the Amendment No. 4
Effective Date, the Aggregate Commitment is $165,000,000.

(d) The definition of “FCCR Test Period™ set forth in Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement
is hereby amended to replace the figure “$12,500,000™ with the figure “$16,500,0007 each time such
figure appears therein.

(e} The definition of “Monthly Reporting Period™ set forth in Section 1.01 of the Credit
Agreement is hereby amended to replace the figure “$40,000,000™ with the figure “$50,000,000".

(H The definition of “Payment Condition™ set forth in Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement
is hereby amended to (i) replace the figure “$25,000,000™ set forth therein with the figure “$33,000,000™
and (ii) replace the figure “$18,750,000™ set forth therein with the figure *$24,750,000.™

(g) The definition of “Weekly Reporting Period” set forth in Section 1.01 of the Credit
Agreement is hereby amended to replace the figure “$12.500,000™ with the figure *$16,500,000™ each
time such figure appears therein.

(h) Section 2. 14(h) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

(b) If at any time the Administrative Agent determines (which determination
shall be conclusive absent manifest error) that (i) the circumstances set forth in clause
(api) have arisen and such circumstances are unlikely to be temporary or (ii) the
circumstances set forth in clause (a)(i) have not arisen but either (w) the supervisor for
the administrator of the LIBO Screen Rate has made a public statement that the
administrator of the LIBO Screen Rate is insolvent {and there is no successor
administrator that will continue publication of the LIBO Screen Rate), (x) the
administrator of the LIBO Screen Rate has made a public statement identifying a specific
date after which the LIBO Screen Rate will permanently or indefinitely cease to be
published by it (and there is no successor administrator that will continue publication of
the LIBO Sereen Rate), (y) the supervisor for the administrator of the LIBO Screen Rate
has made a public statement identifying a specific date after which the LIBO Screen Rate
will permanently or indefinitely cease 10 be published or (z) the supervisor for the
administrator of the LIBO Screen Rate or a Governmental Authority having jurisdiction
over the Administrative Agent has made a public statement identifying a specific date
after which the LIBO Screen Rate may no longer be used for determining interest rates
for loans, then the Administrative Agent and the Borrower Representative shall endeavor
to establish an alternate rate of interest to the LIBO Rate that gives due consideration to
the then prevailing market convention for determining a rate of interest for syndicated
loans in the United States at such time, and shall enter into an amendment to this
Agreement to reflect such alternate rate of interest and such other related changes to this
Agreement as may be applicable (but for the avoidance of doubt, such related changes
shall not include a reduction of the Applicable Rate). Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in Section 9.02, such amendment shall become effective without any further
action or consent of any other party to this Agreement so long as the Administrative
Agent shall not have received, within five (5) Business Days of the date notice of such
alternate rate of interest is provided to the Lenders, a written notice from the Required
Lenders stating that such Required Lenders object to such amendment. Until an alternate
rate of interest shall be determined in accordance with this clause (b) (but, in the case of
the cireumstances deseribed in clause (if) of the first sentence of this Section 2.14(b),
only to the extent the LIBO Screen Rate for such Interest Period is not available or
published at such time on a current basis), (x) any Interest Election Request that requests
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the conversion of any Borrowing to, or continuation of any Borrowing as, a Eurodollar
Borrowing shall be ineffective and any such Eurodollar Borrowing shall be repaid or
converted into an ABR Borrowing on the last day of the then current Interest Period
applicable thereto, and (y) if any Borrowing Request requests a Eurodollar Borrowing,
such Borrowing shall be made as an ABR Borrowing; provided that, if such alternate rate
of interest shall be less than zero, such rate shall be deemed to be zero for the purposes of
this Agreement.

(i) Section 3.15 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to replace the reference to the
“Effective Date” contained therein with a reference to the “Amendment No. 4 Effective Date.”

(1) Section 3.18 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to replace each reference to the
“Effective Date™ contained therein with a reference to the “Amendment No. 4 Effective Date.”

(k) Section 5.11 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to: (x) amend and restate clause
(1) of the proviso set forth in the final sentence therein as follows:

(i) an Inventory appraisal may be conducted during any calendar year at the sole
expense of the Loan Parties if the Aggregate Availability is less than 550,000,000 at any time
during such calendar year,

and (y) replace the figure “$12,500,000™ set forth therein with the figure “$16,500,000."

(1 Section 5.12 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to replace the figure
“$12,500,0007 set forth therein with the figure “$16,500,000.”

{m) Article VIII of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to add the following provisions
to the end of such Article:

Each Lender (x) represents and warrants, as of the date such Person became a
Lender party hereto, to, and (y) covenants, from the date such Person became a
Lender party hereto to the date such Person ceases being a Lender party hereto, for
the benefit of, the Administrative Agent and its Affiliates, and not, for the avoidance
of doubt, to or for the benefit of any Borrower or any other Loan Party, that at least
one of the following is and will be true:

{a) such Lender is not using “plan assets” (within the meaning of the Plan
Asset Regulations) of one or more Benefit Plans in connection with the Loans, the
Letters of Credit or the Commitments,

{b) the transaction exemption set forth in one or more PTEs, such as PTE 84-
14 (a class exemption for certain transactions determined by independent qualified
professional asset managers), PTE 95-60 (a class exemption for certain transactions
involving insurance company general accounts), PTE 90-1 (a class exemption for
certain transactions involving insurance company pooled separate accounts), PTE
91-38 (a class exemption for certain transactions involving bank collective
investment funds) or PTE 96-23 (a class exemption for certain transactions
determined by in-house asset managers), is applicable with respect to such Lender’s
entrance into, participation in, administration of and performance of the Loans, the
Letters of Credit, the Commitments and this Agreement. and the conditions for




exemptive relief thereunder are and will continue to be satisfied in connection
therewith,

{c) (i) such Lender is an investment fund managed by a “Qualified
Professional Asset Manager™ (within the meaning of Part V1 of PTE 84-14), (ii)
such Qualified Professional Asset Manager made the investment decision on behalf
of such Lender to enter into, participate in, administer and perform the Loans, the
Letters of Credit, the Commitments and this Agreement, (iii) the entrance into,
participation in, administration of and performance of the Loans, the Letters of
Credit, the Commitments and this Agreement satisfies the requirements of sub-
sections (b) through (g) of Part [ of PTE 84-14 and (D) to the best knowledge of
such Lender, the requirements of subsection (a) of Part I of PTE 84-14 are satisfied
with respect to such Lender’s entrance into, participation in, administration of and
performance of the Loans, the Letters of Credit, the Commitments and this
Agreement, or

{d) such other representation, warranty and covenant as may be agreed in
writing between the Administrative Agent, in its sole discretion, and such Lender.

In addition, unless the immediately preceding clause (a) is true with respect to a
Lender or such Lender has not provided another representation, warranty and covenant as
provided in the immediately preceding clause (d), such Lender further (x) represents and
warrants, as of the date such Person became a Lender party hereto, to, and (y) covenants,
from the date such Person became a Lender party hereto to the date such Person ceases
being a Lender party hereto, for the benefit of, the Administrative Agent and its
Affiliates, and not, for the avoidance of doubt, to or for the benefit of any Borrower or
any other Loan Party, that:

(a) none of the Administrative Agent or any of its Affiliates is a fiduciary with
respect to the assets of such Lender (including in connection with the reservation or
exercise of any rights by the Administrative Agent under this Agreement, any Loan
Document or any documents related to hereto or thereto),

(b) the Person making the investment decision on behalf of such Lender with
respect to the entrance into, participation in, administration of and performance of
the Loans, the Letters of Credit, the Commitments and this Agreement is
independent (within the meaning of 29 CFR § 2510.3-21, as amended from time to
time) and is a bank, an insurance carrier, an investment adviser, a broker-dealer or
other person that holds, or has under management or control, total assets of at least
$50 million, in each case as described in 29 CFR §2510.3-21{c)( 1)(iNA)-(E).

(c) the Person making the investment decision on behalf of such Lender with
respect to the entrance into, participation in, administration of and performance of
the Loans, the Letters of Credit, the Commitments and this Agreement is capable of
eviluating investment risks independently, both in general and with regard to
particular transactions and investment strategies (including in respect of the
Obligations),

(d) the Person making the investment decision on behalf of such Lender with
respect to the entrance into, participation in, administration of and performance of
the Loans, the Letters of Credit, the Commitments and this Agreement is a fiduciary
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under ERISA or the Code, or both, with respect to the Loans, the Letters of Credit,
the Commitments and this Agreement and is responsible for exercising independent
judgment in evaluating the transactions hereunder, and

() no fee or other compensation is being paid directly to the Administrative
Agent or any of its Affiliates for investment advice (as opposed to other services) in
connection with the Loans, the Letters of Credit, the Commitments or this
Agreement,

The Administrative Agent hereby informs the Lenders that it is not undertaking
to provide impartial investment advice, or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity, in
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, and that it has a financial interest
in the transactions contemplated hereby in that it or an Affiliate of it (i) may receive
interest or other payments with respect to the Loans, the Letters of Credit, the
Commitments and this Agreement, (ii) may recognize a gain if it extended the Loans, the
Letters of Credit or the Commitments for an amount less than the amount being paid for
an interest in the Loans, the Letters of Credit or the Commitments by such Lender or (iii)
may receive fees or other payments in connection with the transactions contemplated
hereby, the Loan Documents or otherwise, including structuring fees, commitment fees,
arrangement fees, facility fees, upfront fees, underwriting fees, ticking fees, agency fees,
administrative agent or collateral agent fees, utilization fees, minimum usage fees, letter
of credit fees, fronting fees, deal-away or alternate transaction fees, amendment fees,
processing fees, term out premiums, banker’s acceptance fees, breakage or other early
termination fees or fees similar to the foregoing.

(n) Schedules 3.15 and 3.18 to the Credit Agreement are hereby amended and restated in

their entirety to read as set forth on Exhibit A hereto.

Section 2. Conditions of Effectiveness. The effectiveness of this Amendment 1s
subject to the conditions precedent that the Administrative Agent shall have received:

(a) counterparts to this Amendment, duly executed by each of the Borrowers, the other Loan
Parties, the Lenders and the Administrative Agent;

(b) payment and reimbursement of the Administrative Agent’s and its affiliates’ fees and
expenses (including, to the extent invoiced, reasonable fees and expenses of counsel for the
Administrative Agent) in connection with this Amendment and the other Loan Documents; and

(c) such other opinions, instruments and documents as are reasonably requested by the
Administrative Agent.

Section 3. Representations and Warranties of the Loan Parties. Each Loan
Party hereby represents and warrants as follows:

(a) This Amendment has been duly executed and delivered by it and constitutes its
legal, valid and binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable
bankruptey, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and
subject to general principles of equity, regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.




(b) Immediately after giving effect to this Amendment, the representations and
warranties of the Loan Parties set forth in the Loan Documents shall be true and correct in all material
respects (provided that any representation or warranty that is qualified by materiality, Material Adverse
Effect or similar language shall be true and correct in all respects) on and as of the date hereof, except to
the extent that such representations and warranties specifically refer to an earlier date, in which case they
shall be true and correct in all material respects (provided that any representation or warranty that is
qualified by materiality, Material Adverse Effect or similar language shall be true and correct in all
respects) as of such earlier date.

(c) Immediately after giving effect to this Amendment, no Default or Event of Default
shall have occurred and be continuing.

Section 4. Reaffirmation. Except as specifically set forth in this Amendment, the
Loan Documents shall remain in full force and effect and are hereby reaffirmed, ratified and confirmed.
To the extent that any provision of this Amendment conflicts with any terms or conditions set forth in the
Loan Documents, the provisions of this Amendment shall supersede and control. Except as expressly
provided herein, the execution and delivery of this Amendment shall not: (i) constitute an extension,
modification, or waiver of any aspect of the Loan Documents or any right or remedy thercunder; (ii)
extend the terms of the Loan Documents or the due date of any of the loans set forth therein; (iii) establish
a course of dealing between the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Bank and’or the Lenders and the Loan
Parties or give rise to any obligation on the part of the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Bank and/or any
Lender to extend, modify or waive any term or condition of the Loan Documents; or (iv) give rise to any
defenses or counterclaims to the Administrative Agent’s, the Issuing Bank’s and/or any Lender’s right to
compel payment of any loan or to otherwise enforce its rights and remedies under the Loan Documents,
Each of the Loan Parties restates, acknowledges and agrees that the Secured Obligations are outstanding
without claim, offset, counterclaim, defense or affirmative defense of any kind and the Secured
Obligations remain the continuing and individual obligations of the Loan Parties, until the termination of
all Commitments, payment and satisfaction in full in cash of all Secured Obligations (other than
Unliguidated Obligations), and the cash collateralization of all Unliquidated Obligations in a manner
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent,

Section 5. Effect on Credit Agreement. Upon  the effectiveness  of  this
Amendment, on and after the date hereof, each reference in the Credit Agreement to “this Agreement,”
“hereunder,” “hereof,” “herein™ or words of like import shall mean and be a reference to the Credit
Agreement, as amended and modified hereby.

Section 6. GOVERNING LAW, THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE
GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE
OF NEW YORK.

Section 7. Headings. Section headings in this Amendment are included herein for
convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part of this Amendment for any other purpose.

Section 8. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed by one or more of the
parties to this Amendment on any number of separate counterparts and all of said counterparts taken
together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. A facsimile or PDF copy of any
signature hereto shall have the same effect as the original thereof,

[The remainder of this page is intentionally blank.]




IN WITWESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been duly executed as of the day and year
first above wrilten.

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, TNC,

By: /-?_rl-—-..a-u ‘r/;?/é?“/“‘”
Name: Hhvan Highes
Title: Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

WINNEBAGO QF INDIANA, LLC

By:

Name: Scott Degnan
Title: President

GRAND DESIGN RV, LLC

By:

Name: Donald Clark
Title: President

OCTAVIUS CORPORATION

By:

Name; Michael J. Happe
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Signature Page 10 Amendmant No. 4 w Credit Agreement
Winnebago Industries, Inc.




N WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been duly executed as of the day and year
first above written.

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

By:

Name: Bryan Hughes
Title: Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

WINNEBAGO OF INDIANA, LLC

By: E%

Name; Scoft Degnai
Title: President

GRAND DESIGN RV, LLC

By:

Mame: Donald Clark
Title: President

QCTAVIUS CORPORATION

By:

Name: Michael J. Happe
Title: President and Chief Executive Olficer

Signature Page fo Amendment No. 4 to Credit Agroement
Winnebago Industries, Ine,




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been duly exceuted as of the day and year
first above written.

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC,

By:

Name: Bryan Hughes
Title: Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

WINNEBAGO OF INDIANA, LLC

By:

Name: Scott Degnan
Title: President

GRAND DESIGN RV, LLC

By: J\«—/ / “/‘i

NaifresDonald Clark
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

OCTAVIUS CORPORATION

By:

Nume: Michael J. Happe
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Signature Pege to Amendiment No. 4 to Credit A greement
‘Winnebago Industries, Ine.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been duly executed as of the day and year
first above written.

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.

By:

“Name: Bryan Hughes
Title: Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

WINNEBAGO OF INDIANA, LLC

By:

Name: Scott Degnan
Title: President

GRAND DESIGN RV, LLC

By:

Name; Donald Clark
Title: President

OCTAVIUS CORPORATION

By: ‘%Wuf ; %‘—'_

Name:\Michael J. Happe
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Signaure Page to Amendment Mo, 4 o Credit Agreemens
Winmebago Industries, Ine.




IPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A,, individually as
a Lender, as Swingline Lender, as an Issuing Bank
and as Adminisirative Agent

By: /eafé M———-—”"

Mayfie: John Morrone
Te: Authorized Officer

Signarure Page 10 Amendment No. 4 to Credit Agresmsnt
Winnebago [ndusiries, Ine.
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Schedule 3.15

Capitalizations and Subsidiaries

Industries, Inc.

Entity Ownerls) Class of Equity Type of Entity
Interests

Winnebago of Indiana, LLC Winnebago Membership lowa limited
Industries, Inc. Interests liability company

Octavius Corperation Winnebago Common Stock Delaware
Industries, Inc. corporation

Grand Design RV, LLC Octavius Membership Indiana limited
Corporation Interests liability company

Chris Craft Limited Winnebago Ordinary Shares Jersey Channel

Islands private
company limited

by shares

Chris Craft USA, Inc.* Chris Craft Common Stock Delaware

Limited corporation
Chris-Craft Corporation* Chris Craft USA, | Common Stock Delaware

Inc. corporation
CC Marine Brand Acquisition, | Chris Craft USA, | Membership Delaware LLC
LLC* Inc. Interests
CC Property Acquisition, Chris-Craft Membership Delaware LLC
LLC* Corporation Interests

* This entity is a subsidiary, but not a Loan Party.




Schedule 3.18

Coverage Type Policy # Policy Carrier Limits Retention
Term
Property 1027183 6/1/18-19 | FM Global TIV $1,1137,870,449 $1M PD/TE
All Risk Company Form subject to exceptions
Automabile 41 CSE 557602 6/1/18-19 | The Hartford $2M Each Accident Third-Party Liability $100,000 Liability
Deductible
Physical Damage:
-Self-Insured for Fleet Autos Phys Damage/Garage:
-Actual Cash Value 51,000 Comprehensive
Deductible
Garage Keepers: 51,000 Collision
$1.5M - 1A, OR, IN Deductible
General Liability 41 CSE 557601 6/1/18-19 | The Hartford 51M Each Occurrence 5250,000 Liability
(Excluding $1M Personal/Advertising Injury Deductible
Products/Completed $300K Damage to Premises Rented to You
Operations) $10K Medical Expense
$2M General Aggregate
Employee Benefits Injury Liability
$1M Each 'claim' limit
S1M Aggregate - Subject to General
Agpregate
Retained Risk Protection PL1744429-01 6/1/18-19 | Great American S$1M Each Oceurrence BI/PD Liab Combined
Paolicy E&S Insurance 52M Aggregate $2.5M Each occurrence
Products/Completed Company OMLY IF APPLICABLE
Operations Liability S6M  Aggregate
$50,000 Each
Occurrence
(Continuing Self-Insured
Retention)
Excess Liability X51744430-01 6/1/2018- | Great American 510M Each Occurrence
(10 M Lead Excess) 19 E&S Insurance S10M Aggregate (where applicable)
Company $10M Aggregate Products Completed
Operations
Excess Liability EXS 2000692 01 6/1/18-19 | Swiss Re Group $25M Each Occurrence Subject to Great

{5250 xs $10M)

North American
Capacity Insurance
Company

$25M Aggregate Limit
$25M Aggregate for Products-Completed
Operations

American 510M




Excess Liability AR3461969 6/1/18-19 | Colony Insurance $15M Each Occurrence Subject to Underlying
[$15M xs $35M) Co. $15M Aggregate Policies
Foreign Package 7315-69-83 MIN | 6/1/18-19 | Chubb and Son, $100,000 International Property-Personal | 51,000 ded

Inc.

Property

General Liability

$1M Each Occurrence

$1M General Aggregate

$1M Personal/Advertising Aggregate
$1M Dame to Premises Rented to You
510,000 Medical Expense Limit

Employee Benefit Programs Errors or
Omissions
$250K Each Claim/Aggregate

Commercial Auto Liability
$1M BI/PD
510,000 Medical Payments

Workers' Compensation
Statutory State of Hire

Repatriation Expense:
5250K Each Employee
S500K Aggregate

Employers Liability
S1M Limit

Crime
55,000 EE Theft
55,000 Credit Card Forgery

Blanket Accident
5300K Principal Sum (Employees)
51.5M Per Accident Maximum

51,000 Deductible Crime




Kidnap/Ranson and Extortion
$100,000 Limit

9 | Crime 106747087 6/1/18-19 | Travelers S5M Each Occurrence $100,000 Retention
Each Loss
10 | Commercial Liquor CPS2827467 6/1/18-19 | Scottsdale 51M Each Common Cause Limit
Insurance S2M Aggregate
Company
11 | Directors & Officers 106535745 6/1/18-19 | Travelers 510M Aggregate 5750,000 all Securities

Primary

Retention
$500,000 All Other
Claims Retention




12 | 1st Excess Directors & DOX1001313010 | &/1/18-19 | Sompo $10M xs S10M Subject to Underlying
Officers 0 International Palicies
13 | 2nd Excess Directors & BPROBD32444 6/1/18-19 | Berkley Insurance | $10M xs $20M Subject to Underlying
Officers Company Policies
14 | 3rd Excess Directors & USFO0105818 6/1/18-19 | Allianz $10M xs ADIC D&O Subject to Underlying
Officers Policies
15 | Workers Compensation - 41 WNS57600 6/1/18-19 | The Hartford Statutory $250,000 Large
AOS Deductible
16 | Workers Compensation - EWC009401 6/1/18-19 | Midwest Statutory 51.1 M Self-lnsured
14 Employers Casualty Retention
: . Company . =
17 | Workers Compensation 154583-00 Continuo | Washington L&l Statutory nfa
- Monopolistic WA State us
18 | Property - CC - Florida AMR-40988-03 3/1/18-19 | Amrisc [Lloyds of TIV 523,544,090 525,000 PD/Per Occ
London) 55% (5100,000 min)
Named storm ded
550,000 all other
wind/hail ded
19 | Marine General Z0L-21N32909- 3/1/18-19 | Travelers Property | $2M Gen Aggregate 510,000 Per Occurrence
Liability/Marina Operators | 18-ND Casualty of $2M Prod-Comp Ops Aggregate Ded
Legal Liability Coverage America S1M Pers Inj - Advertising Inj
Marine Manufacturers $1M Each Occurence
Legal Liability - CC Florida $300,000 Title E&OD Annual Aggregate
Limit
20 | Boat Dealers & Protection | ZOH-21P07877- 3/1/18-19 | Travelers Property | Estimated Monthly Ave Inv 51,250,000 510,000 ded - All other

& Indemnity - CC Florida

18-ND

Casualty of
America

$500,000 Any One Vessel

$1M at any unscheduled premises

$1M while in course of transit by land, air
and water

$1M any one trade, exhibition or boat
show

$50,000 per occurrence for
accessories/supplies/inventory at sched.
premises

perid ded (per
occurrence)

2.5% of total insured
value any one
occurrence - Named
Storm or Numbered
Storm




| Company

21 | Hull Builders Risk - CC Z0H-15564329- | 3/1/18-19 | Travelers Property | $500,000 Any one vessel $50,000 ded (per
Florida 18-ND Casualty of 59,000,000 Any one accident or occurrence)
Armmerica occurrence (Yard Limit) 55,000 ded Protection &
51,000,000 Any one Occurrence- Indemnity ded
Protection & Indemnity 2.5% of total Ins value
53,500,000 Molds (per schedule) (per occurrence) -
Coinsurance Molds nfa Named or Numbered
Storm
Molds are included in
ded
22 | Transportation & H-660-3F23200A- | 3/1/18-19 | Travelers Property | $500,000 Motor Carrier Limit 510,000 ded - All other
Equipment - CC Florida TiL-18 Casualty of $500,000 Railroad Limit perils
America 5500,000 Land Vehicles Limit All Other Peril Ded -
Named Storm
$150,000 Leased or Rented Equipment Deductible
$250,000 Newly acquired equipment $2,500 ded - Leased or
- I W —— e | Rented Equip
23 | Commercial Automobile - | BA-3F215420-18- | 3/1/18-19 | Phoenix Ins. Co. S1M CSL Each Accident All but 2012
CC/Florida OCN Third Party Liability $1,000 Collision Ded
51,000 Comp Ded
Physical Damage: 2012 vehicle
ACV All Autos $5,000 Collision Ded
$5,000 Comp Ded
24 | Primary Bumbershoot - CC | ZOB-21N32510- 3/1/18-19 | Travelers 510,000,000 Limit of Liability $25,000 Retentions
Florida 18-ND
25 | Excess Bumbershoot - CC NY18LIA1513960 | 3/1/18-19 | Navigators 515M Excess S10M
Florida 1 Insurance




26 | Management Liability - CC | 8234-3720 3/1/18-19 | Federal Ins Co D&O D&O
Florida (Chubb) $1M Each Occurrence/Aggregate 510,000 Per claim Corp.
Employment Practices Ret.
$1M Each Occurrence/Aggregate Employment Practice
Fiduciary Liability 525,000 Retention
51,000,000 Each Occurrence/Aggregate Fiduciary
Crime 50 Retention
51M Employee Theft Limit Crime
51M Premises Limit 55,000 Retention each
$1M In Transit Limit coverage above except
$1M Fargery Limit below
$1M Computer Fraud Limit 50 Claims Expense Limit
$1M Funds Transfer Fraud Limit Retention
51M Money Orders & Counterfeit 510,000 Social
Currency Limit Engineering Retention
51M Credit Card Fraud Limit
$1M Client Limit
$250,000 Claims Expense Limit
550,000 Social Engineering Fraud
27 | Equipment Breakdown R5099741274 3/1/18-19 | Continental 516,044,090 Limit Per Breakdown 55,000 Property
Casualty Company | 511,544,090 Property Damage Damage ded
$100,000 Expediting Expense $5,000 Ammonia

54,500,000 Business Income/Extra
Expense
5$100,000 Ammonia Contamination

Contamination ded







Exhibit 10b.

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
2014 OMNIBUS EQUITY, PERFORMANCE AWARD, AND
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement

Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), hereby grants a stock option
award (the “Option”) to you, the Participant named below (the “Participant”). The terms and conditions of this Option Award are set forth in this Agreement (the “Agreement”), consisting of this
cover page, the Option Terms and Conditions on the following pages, and in the Plan document, a copy of which has been provided to you. Any capitalized term that is used but not defined in this
Agreement shall have the meaning assigned to it in the Plan as it currently exists or as it is amended in the future.

Name of Participant:
No. of Shares Covered: Grant Date: October 15, 2018
Exercise Price Per Share:$ Expiration Date: October 15, 2028
Vesting and Exercise Schedule:

Dates
October 15, 2019
October 15, 2020
October 15, 2021

By signing below or otherwise evidencing your acceptance of this Agreement in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all of the terms and conditions contained in this
Agreement and in the Plan document. You acknowledge that you have received and reviewed these documents and that they set forth the entire agreement between you and the Company
regarding your right to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock pursuant to this Option.

PARTICIPANT: WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
By:
Title:
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WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
2014 OMNIBUS EQUITY, PERFORMANCE AWARD, AND
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement

Terms and Conditions

1. DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Agreement, the definitions of terms contained in the Plan hereby are incorporated by reference, except to the extent that any such term is specifically
defined in this Agreement.

“Cause” means, unless otherwise defined in a then-effective written agreement (including an Agreement) between a Participant and the Company or any Affiliate, a Participant’s
(i) material failure to perform satisfactorily the duties reasonably required of the Participant by the Company (other than by reason of Disability); (ii) material violation of any law, rule, regulation,
court order or regulatory directive (other than traffic violations, misdemeanors or other minor offenses); (iii) material breach of the Company's business conduct or ethics code or of any fiduciary
duty or nondisclosure, non-solicitation, non-competition or similar obligation owed to the Company or any Affiliate; (iv) engaging in any act or practice that involves personal dishonesty on the part
of the Participant or demonstrates a willful and continuing disregard for the best interests of the Company and its Affiliates; or (v) engaging in dishonorable or disruptive behavior, practices or acts
which would be reasonably expected to harm or bring disrepute to the Company or any of its Affiliates, their business or any of their customers, employees or vendors.

“Change in Control” means one of the following:

(1) An Exchange Act Person becomes the beneficial owner (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) of securities of the Company representing 30% or
more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding Voting Securities, except that the following will not constitute a Change in Control:

(A) any acquisition of securities of the Company by an Exchange Act Person from the Company for the purpose of providing financing to the Company;
(B) any formation of a Group consisting solely of beneficial owners of the Company's Voting Securities as of the effective date of the Plan; or

(C) any repurchase or other acquisition by the Company of its Voting Securities that causes any Exchange Act Person to become the beneficial owner of 30% or
more of the Company'’s Voting Securities.

If, however, an Exchange Act Person or Group referenced in clause (A), (B) or (C) above acquires beneficial ownership of additional Company Voting Securities after initially becoming the
beneficial owner of 30% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s Voting Securities by one of the means described in those clauses, then a Change in Control will be deemed to
have occurred.

(2) Individuals who are Continuing Directors cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the members of the Board.

(3) A Corporate Transaction is consummated, unless, immediately following such Corporate Transaction, all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the
beneficial owners of the Company's Voting Securities immediately prior to such Corporate Transaction beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the combined voting power of the
then outstanding Voting Securities of the surviving or acquiring entity resulting from such Corporate Transaction (including beneficial ownership through any parent of such entity) in substantially
the same proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to such Corporate Transaction, of the Company's Voting Securities.

“Continuing Director” means an individual (i) who is, as of the effective date of the Plan, a director of the Company, or (ii) who becomes a director of the Company after the effective
date hereof and whose initial election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders, was approved by at least a majority of the then Continuing Directors but excluding, for purposes
of this clause (ii), an individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as the result of an actual or threatened proxy contest involving the solicitation of proxies or consents by a person or Group
other than the Board, or by reason of an agreement intended to avoid or settle an actual or threatened proxy contest.

“Corporate Transaction” means (i) a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or (ii) a merger, consolidation, share exchange or similar transaction
involving the Company, regardless of whether the Company is the surviving entity.

“Exchange Act Person” means any natural person, entity or Group other than (i) the Company or any Affiliate; (ii) any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained
by the Company or any Affiliate; (i) an underwriter temporarily

Exhibit 10b-2



holding securities in connection with a registered public offering of such securities; or (iv) an entity whose voting securities are beneficially owned by the beneficial owners of the Company'’s voting
securities in substantially the same proportions as their beneficial ownership of the Company’s voting securities.

“Good Reason” shall have the meaning set forth in the Participant’s change in control agreement, if applicable.

“Group” means two or more persons who act, or agree to act together, as a partnership, limited partnership, syndicate or other group for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting or
disposing of securities of the Company.

“Service” means provision of services to the Company or any Affiliate in any Service Provider capacity. The Participant’s Service shall be deemed to have terminated either upon an
actual cessation of providing services to the Company or any Affiliate or upon the entity to which the Participant provides services ceasing to be an Affiliate. Service shall not be deemed
terminated in the case of (i) any approved leave of absence; (i) the Participant’s transfer among the Company and any Affiliates in any Service Provider capacity; or (iii) any change in the
Participant’s status so long as the Participant remains in the service of the Company or any Affiliate in any Service Provider capacity.

“Service Provider” means an Employee, a non-employee director, or any natural person who is a consultant or advisor, or is employed by a consultant or advisor retained by the
Company or any Affiliate, and who provides services (other than in connection with (i) a capital-raising transaction or (ii) promoting or maintaining a market in Company securities) to the Company
or any Affiliate.

“Voting Securities” of an entity means the outstanding equity securities (or comparable equity interests) entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of such entity.

2. Vesting and Exercisability of Option.

(@) Scheduled Vesting. This Option will vest and become exercisable as to the number of Shares and on the dates specified in the Vesting and Exercise Schedule on the cover page to
this Agreement, so long as the Participant’s Service to the Company does not end. The Vesting and Exercise Schedule is cumulative, meaning that to the extent the Option has not already been
exercised and has not expired or been terminated or cancelled, the Participant or the person otherwise entitled to exercise the Option as provided in this Agreement may at any time purchase all
or any portion of the Shares subject to the vested portion of the Option. This Option shall not be exercisable under any circumstances after the expiration of ten (10) years from the date this
option is granted.

(b) Accelerated Vesting. Vesting and exercisability of this Option will be accelerated during the term of the Option under the circumstances described in Section 11 of the Plan. If the
Participant’s Service terminates prior to the final scheduled vesting date specified in the Vesting and Exercise Schedule on the cover page to this Agreement due to the Participant’s death or
Disability, then any unvested portion of the Option subject to this Agreement shall vest as of such termination date.

3. Intentionally Omitted.

4. Expiration. This vested and exercisable portions of this Option will expire and will no longer be exercisable at 5:00 p.m. Central Time on the earliest of:

(a) The ten (10) year anniversary of the date this option is granted;

(b) Upon the Participant’s termination of employment for Cause;

(c) Upon the one year anniversary of the date of the Participant’s termination of Service due to death or Disability;

(d) Upon the three month anniversary of the date of the Participant’s termination of Service due to any reason other than Cause, death or Disability; or
(e) The date (if any) fixed for termination or cancellation of this Option pursuant to Section 11 of the Plan.

5. METHOD OF EXERCISING THE OPTION.

(@) Minimum Shares. This Option may be exercised in whole or in part, but not for less than 100 shares at any one time, unless fewer than 100 Shares are then purchasable under the
Option and the Option is then being exercised as to all such Shares.

(b) Written Notice. This Option may be exercised only by Participant or Participant's legal representative as provided for in the Plan. This Option may be exercised by giving written
notice to the Company, addressed to the attention of the Secretary of the Company. Such notice shall be in such form as may be approved by the Company and shall state, among other things,
the number of shares of Common Stock to be purchased, and must be signed or otherwise authenticated by the Participant or Participant’s legal representative entitled to exercise the Option
and, if being exercised by any person other than Participant, be accompanied by proof, satisfactory to counsel for the Company, of the right of such person to exercise the Option. After the
Participant has obtained approval from the Secretary of the Company to exercise some or all of the Option, he or she is required to deliver an
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electronic notice of exercise to the third-party stock plan administrator retained by the Company (which electronic notice will be in such form as may be approved by the Company, including (but
not limited to) the following information: the number of shares of Common Stock to be purchased, the person(s) in whose name the stock certificate for the Shares is to be registered together with
other identifying information relating to such holder, and the manner in which the exercise price will be paid). The electronic notice must be authenticated by the person exercising this Option.

(c) Payment of Exercise Price. The Exercise Price plus any applicable withholding or other compensation taxes, commissions and fees payable upon exercise of all or any portion of
the Shares subject to this Option shall be payable to the Company in full through one or a combination of the following methods:

i. “Cash Transfer” from the Participant's stock brokerage account at least 2 days prior to event, the Participant shall submit payment of the aggregate amount of the
Exercise Price as well as all applicable withholding or other compensation taxes, commissions and fees to his or her brokerage account to cover costs; and/or
ii. “Share Withholding” whereby the Participant authorizes the Company to retain, from the total number of Shares as to which the Option is being exercised, that number
of Shares having a Fair Market Value on the date of exercise equal to the aggregate exercise price and the amount of any compensation taxes, commissions and fees
due relating to such exercise.
In the event the Participant does not elect a payment method, the “Share Withholding” method shall apply automatically.

(d) Withholding Taxes. The Participant may not exercise this Option in whole or in part unless the Participant makes arrangements acceptable to the Company for payment of any
federal, state, local or foreign withholding taxes that may be due as a result of the exercise of this Option. Withholding taxes shall be payable by the Participant in accordance with the election(s)
he or she makes pursuant to Section 5(c) above. Delivery of Shares upon exercise of this Option is subject to the satisfaction of applicable withholding tax obligations.

(e) Transfer of Shares. As promptly as practicable after receipt of such written notice, required representations, and payment, the Company shall cause to be issued and
delivered to the Participant or Participant’s legal representative, electronic transfer of such shares so purchased, registered in the name as specified in the written notice and endorsed with any
appropriate restrictive legends in the Participant’s stock plan account.

6. TRANSFERABILITY OF OPTION. This Option may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned or otherwise alienated or hypothecated, other than by will or by the laws of descent and
distribution. In the event of the death of Participant, the Company shall deliver this Option and/or amounts payable to the executor or administrator of Participant’s estate or, if no executor or
administrator has been appointed to the knowledge of the Company, the Company, it its sole discretion, may deliver this Option and/or amounts payable to the spouse or to any one or more
dependents or relatives of Participant, or if no spouse, dependent may designate. This Option shall not be subject to any levy, attachment execution or similar process. In the event of any transfer
or levy of process upon the rights or interests hereby conferred, the Company may terminate this Option by written notice to Participant and it shall thereupon become null and void. This
Agreement shall be binding upon the beneficiaries and legal representative of Participant.

7. ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS ON EXERCISE. This Option may not be exercised if the issuance of shares upon such exercise would constitute a violation of any applicable federal or state
securities or other law or regulation, including, without limitation, the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or regulations promulgated thereunder, or Section 16(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. As a condition to the exercise of this Option, the Company may require the person exercising this Option to make any representation or warranty to the
Company as may be required by applicable law or regulation or other restriction or agreement binding upon or otherwise affecting the Shares of the Company.

8. CHANGE OF CONTROL. Pursuant to the terms of the Plan, the provisions of Section 11 of the Plan are hereby superseded for purposes of this Agreement by the provisions set forth on
Appendix A attached hereto.

9. NOTICE. Every notice or other communication relating to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be mailed to or delivered (including electronically) to the party for whom it is intended at
such address as may from time to time be designated by it in a notice mailed or delivered to the other party as herein provided. Unless and until some other address is so designated, all notices
or communications by the Participant to the Company shall be mailed or delivered to the Company, to the attention of its Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, at its office at 13200
Pioneer Trail, Eden Prairie, MN 55347, slbogart@winnebagoind.com, and all notices or communications by the Company to the Participant may be given to the Participant personally or may be
mailed or, if the Participant is still a Service Provider, emailed to the Participant at the address indicated in the Company's records as the Participant’s most recent mailing or email address.

10. Additional Provisions.

(a) No Right to Continued Service. This Agreement does not give the Participant a right to continued Service with the Company or any Affiliate, and the Company or any such Affiliate
may terminate the Participant’s Service at any time and otherwise deal with the Participant without regard to the effect it may have upon the Participant under this Agreement.
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(b) Governing Plan Document. This Agreement and the Award are subject to all the provisions of the Plan, and to all interpretations, rules and regulations which may, from time to time,
be adopted and promulgated by the Committee pursuant to the Plan. If there is any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govern.

(c) Governing Law. This Agreement, the parties’ performance hereunder, and the relationship between them shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of lowa, without giving effect to the choice of law principles thereof.

(d) Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be severable and if any provision of this Agreement is found by any court to be unenforceable, in whole or in part, the remainder
of this Agreement shall nevertheless be enforceable and binding on the parties. The Participant also agrees that any trier of fact may modify any invalid, overbroad or unenforceable provision of
this Agreement so that such provision, as modified, is valid and enforceable under applicable law.

(e) Binding_Effect. This Agreement will be binding in all respects on the Participant’s heirs, representatives, successors and assigns, and on the successors and assigns of the
Company.

()  Electronic Delivery and Acceptance. The Company may deliver any documents related to this Option by electronic means and request the Participant’s acceptance of this

Agreement by electronic means. The Participant hereby consents to receive all applicable documentation by electronic delivery and to participate in the Plan through an on-line (and/or voice
activated) system established and maintained by the Company or the Company'’s third-party stock plan administrator.

By signing the cover page of this Agreement or otherwise accepting this Agreement in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all the terms and conditions described
above and in the Plan document.

Exhibit 10b-5



APPENDIX A

11. Corporate Transactions; Change in Control. The following provisions shall apply to outstanding Awards in the event of a Change in Control that involves a Corporate Transaction.

(a)(1) Continuation, Assumption or Replacement of Awards. In the event of a Corporate Transaction, then the surviving or successor entity (or its parent) may continue,
assume or replace Awards outstanding as of the date of the Corporate Transaction (with such adjustments as may be required or permitted by Section 17), and such Awards or replacements
therefor shall remain outstanding and be governed by their respective terms, subject to Section 11(a)(4) below. A surviving or successor entity may elect to continue, assume or replace only
some Awards or portions of Awards. For purposes of this Section 11(a)(1), an Award shall be considered assumed or replaced if, in connection with the Corporate Transaction and in a manner
consistent with Code Section 409A (and Code Section 424 if the Award is an ISO), either (i) the contractual obligations represented by the Award are expressly assumed by the surviving or
successor entity (or its Parent) with appropriate adjustments to the number and type of securities subject to the Award and the exercise price thereof that preserves the intrinsic value of the
Award existing at the time of the Corporate Transaction, or (ii) the Participant has received a comparable equity-based award that preserves the intrinsic value of the Award existing at the time of
the Corporate Transaction and contains terms and conditions that are substantially similar to those of the Award. To the extent vesting of any Award continued, assumed or replaced under this
Section 11(a)(1) is subject to satisfaction of specified performance goals, those goals shall be deemed to be achieved as of the date of the Corporate Transaction at the target level of
performance, or, in the discretion of the Committee, at the actual level of performance (if determinable), and such Awards shall continue to be subject to any continuing service requirements.

(2) Acceleration. If and to the extent that outstanding Awards under the Plan are not continued, assumed or replaced in connection with a Corporate Transaction, then (i) all
outstanding Option and SAR Awards shall become fully vested and exercisable for such period of time prior to the effective time of the Corporate Transaction as is deemed fair and equitable by
the Committee, and shall terminate at the effective time of the Corporate Transaction, (ii) all outstanding Stock Awards shall fully vest immediately prior to the effective time of the Corporate
Transaction, and (iii) to the extent vesting of any Award is subject to satisfaction of specified performance goals, such Award shall be deemed “fully vested” for purposes of this Section 11(a)(2) at
the greater of target level of performance or actual level of performance (if determinable) and the vested portion of the Award at that level of performance is proportionate to the portion of the
performance period that has elapsed as of the effective time of the Corporate Transaction. The Committee shall provide written notice of the period of accelerated exercisability of Option and SAR
Awards to all affected Participants. The exercise of any Option or SAR Award whose exercisability is accelerated as provided in this Section 11(a)(2) shall be conditioned upon the consummation
of the Corporate Transaction and shall be effective only immediately before such consummation.

(3) Payment for Awards. If and to the extent that outstanding Awards under the Plan are not continued, assumed or replaced in connection with a Corporate Transaction, then
the Committee may provide that some or all of such outstanding Awards shall be canceled at or immediately prior to the effective time of the Corporate Transaction in exchange for payments to
the holders as provided in this Section 11(a)(3). The Committee will not be required to treat all Awards similarly for purposes of this Section 11(a)(3). The payment for any Award canceled shall
be in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between (i) the fair market value (as determined in good faith by the Committee) of the consideration that would otherwise be received in the
Corporate Transaction for the number of Shares subject to the Award, and (ii) the aggregate exercise price (if any) for the Shares subject to such Award. If the amount determined pursuant to the
preceding sentence is not a positive number with respect to any Award, such Award may be canceled pursuant to this Section 11(a)(3) without payment of any kind to the affected Participant.
With respect to an Award whose vesting is subject to the satisfaction of specified performance goals, the number of Shares subject to such an Award for purposes of this Section 11(a)(3) shall be
the number of Shares as to which the Award would have been deemed “fully vested” for purposes of Section 11(a)(2). Payment of any amount under this Section 11(a)(3) shall be made in such
form, on such terms and subject to such conditions as the Committee determines in its discretion, which may or may not be the same as the form, terms and conditions applicable to payments to
the Company’s stockholders in connection with the Corporate Transaction, and may, in the Committee’s discretion, include subjecting such payments to vesting conditions comparable to those of
the Award canceled, subjecting such payments to escrow or holdback terms comparable to those imposed upon the Company’s stockholders under the Corporate Transaction, or calculating and
paying the present value of payments that would otherwise be subject to escrow or holdback terms.

(4) Termination After a Corporate Transaction. If and to the extent that Awards are continued, assumed or replaced under the circumstances described in Section 11(a)(1),
and if within twenty-four (24) months after the Corporate Transaction a Participant experiences an involuntary termination of Service for reasons other than Cause, or terminates his or her Service
for Good Reason, then (i) outstanding Option and SAR Awards issued to the Participant that are not yet fully exercisable shall immediately become exercisable in full and shall remain exercisable
for one year following the Participant’s termination of employment, and (ii) any Stock Awards that are not yet fully vested shall immediately vest in full.

(b)  Other Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control that does not involve a Corporate Transaction, if within twenty-four (24) months after the Change in Control a
Participant experiences an involuntary termination of Service for reasons other than Cause, or terminates his or her Service for Good Reason, then (i) outstanding Option and SAR Awards issued
to the Participant that are not yet fully exercisable shall immediately become fully vested and exercisable and shall remain exercisable for one year following the Participant’s termination of
employment, (ii) any Stock Awards that are not yet fully vested shall immediately

Exhibit 10b-6



vest in full, and (iii) to the extent vesting of any Award is subject to satisfaction of specified performance goals, such Award shall be deemed “fully vested” for purposes of this Section 11(b) at the

greater of target level of performance or actual level of performance (if determinable) and the vested portion of the Award at that level of performance is proportionate to the portion of the
performance period that has occurred up to the date of such Participant’s termination of Service.

(c) Dissolution or Liquidation. Unless otherwise provided in an applicable Agreement, in the event of a proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the Committee will notify
each Participant as soon as practicable prior to the effective date of such proposed transaction. An Award will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed action.
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Exhibit 10c.
WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
2014 OMNIBUS EQUITY, PERFORMANCE AWARD, AND
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Executives)

Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), hereby grants an award of
Restricted Stock Units to you, the Participant named below. The terms and conditions of this Award are set forth in this Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (the “Agreement”), consisting of
this cover page and the Terms and Conditions on the following pages, and in the Plan document, a copy of which has been provided to you. Any capitalized term that is used but not defined in
this Agreement shall have the meaning assigned to it in the Plan as it currently exists or as it is amended in the future.

Name of Participant:
Number of Restricted Stock Units:

Grant Date:October 15, 2018

Vesting Schedule:
Scheduled Vesting Dates Number of Restricted Stock Units that Vest
October 15, 2019
October 15, 2020
October 15, 2021

By signing below or otherwise evidencing your acceptance of this Agreement in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all of the terms and conditions contained in this
Agreement and in the Plan document. You acknowledge that you have received and reviewed these documents.

PARTICIPANT: WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
By:
Title:
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WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
2014 OMNIBUS EQUITY, PERFORMANCE AWARD AND
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Executives)

Terms and Conditions

1. Defined Terms. For purposes of this Agreement, the definitions of terms contained in the Plan hereby are incorporated by reference, except to the extent that any such term is specifically
defined in this Agreement.

“Cause” means, unless otherwise defined in a then-effective written agreement (including an Agreement) between a Participant and the Company or any Affiliate, a Participant’s
(i) material failure to perform satisfactorily the duties reasonably required of the Participant by the Company (other than by reason of Disability); (ii) material violation of any law, rule, regulation,
court order or regulatory directive (other than traffic violations, misdemeanors or other minor offenses); (iii) material breach of the Company's business conduct or ethics code or of any fiduciary
duty or nondisclosure, non-solicitation, non-competition or similar obligation owed to the Company or any Affiliate; (iv) engaging in any act or practice that involves personal dishonesty on the part
of the Participant or demonstrates a willful and continuing disregard for the best interests of the Company and its Affiliates; or (v) engaging in dishonorable or disruptive behavior, practices or acts
which would be reasonably expected to harm or bring disrepute to the Company or any of its Affiliates, their business or any of their customers, employees or vendors.

“Change in Control” means one of the following:
(1) An Exchange Act Person becomes the beneficial owner (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) of securities of the Company representing 30% or
more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding Voting Securities, except that the following will not constitute a Change in Control:
(A) any acquisition of securities of the Company by an Exchange Act Person from the Company for the purpose of providing financing to the Company;
(B) any formation of a Group consisting solely of beneficial owners of the Company's Voting Securities as of the effective date of the Plan; or

(C) any repurchase or other acquisition by the Company of its Voting Securities that causes any Exchange Act Person to become the beneficial owner of 30% or
more of the Company'’s Voting Securities.

If, however, an Exchange Act Person or Group referenced in clause (A), (B) or (C) above acquires beneficial ownership of additional Company Voting Securities after initially becoming the
beneficial owner of 30% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s Voting Securities by one of the means described in those clauses, then a Change in Control will be deemed to
have occurred.

(2) Individuals who are Continuing Directors cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the members of the Board.

(3) A Corporate Transaction is consummated, unless, immediately following such Corporate Transaction, all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the
beneficial owners of the Company's Voting Securities immediately prior to such Corporate Transaction beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the combined voting power of the
then outstanding Voting Securities of the surviving or acquiring entity resulting from such Corporate Transaction (including beneficial ownership through any parent of such entity) in substantially
the same proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to such Corporate Transaction, of the Company's Voting Securities.

“Continuing Director” means an individual (i) who is, as of the effective date of the Plan, a director of the Company, or (ii) who becomes a director of the Company after the effective
date hereof and whose initial election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders, was approved by at least a majority of the then Continuing Directors but excluding, for purposes
of this clause (ii), an individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as the result of an actual or threatened proxy contest involving the solicitation of proxies or consents by a person or Group
other than the Board, or by reason of an agreement intended to avoid or settle an actual or threatened proxy contest.

“Corporate Transaction” means (i) a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or (ii) a merger, consolidation, share exchange or similar transaction
involving the Company, regardless of whether the Company is the surviving entity.

“Exchange Act Person” means any natural person, entity or Group other than (i) the Company or any Affiliate; (ii) any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained
by the Company or any Affiliate; (i) an underwriter temporarily holding securities in connection with a registered public offering of such securities; or (iv) an entity whose Voting Securities are
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beneficially owned by the beneficial owners of the Company’s Voting Securities in substantially the same proportions as their beneficial ownership of the Company’s Voting Securities.
“Good Reason” shall have the meaning set forth in your change in control agreement, if applicable.

“Group” means two or more persons who act, or agree to act together, as a partnership, limited partnership, syndicate or other group for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting or
disposing of securities of the Company.

“Service” means your provision of services to the Company or any Affiliate in any Service Provider capacity. Your Service shall be deemed to have terminated either upon an actual
cessation of providing services to the Company or any Affiliate or upon the entity to which you provide services ceasing to be an Affiliate. Service shall not be deemed terminated in the case of (i)
any approved leave of absence; (ii) your transfer among the Company and any Affiliates in any Service Provider capacity; or (i) any change in your status so long as you remain in the service of
the Company or any Affiliate in any Service Provider capacity.

“Service Provider” means an Employee, a non-employee director, or any natural person who is a consultant or advisor, or is employed by a consultant or advisor retained by the
Company or any Affiliate, and who provides services (other than in connection with (i) a capital-raising transaction or (ii) promoting or maintaining a market in Company securities) to the Company
or any Affiliate.

“Voting Securities” of an entity means the outstanding equity securities (or comparable equity interests) entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of such entity.

2. Grant of Restricted Stock Units. The Company hereby confirms the grant to you, as of the Grant Date and subject to the terms and conditions in this Agreement and the Plan, of the
number of Restricted Stock Units specified on the cover page of this Agreement (the “Units”). Each Unit represents the right to receive one share of the Company’s Common Stock (each, a
“Share”). Prior to their settlement or forfeiture in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Units granted to you will be credited to an account in your name maintained by the Company.
This account shall be unfunded and maintained for book-keeping purposes only, with the Units simply representing an unfunded and unsecured contingent obligation of the Company.

3. Restrictions Applicable to Units. Neither this Award nor the Units subject to this Award may be sold, assigned, transferred, exchanged or encumbered, voluntarily or involuntarily, other
than a transfer upon your death in accordance with your will, by the laws of descent and distribution or pursuant to a beneficiary designation submitted in accordance with the Plan. Following any
such transfer, this Award shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions that were applicable to this Award immediately prior to its transfer. Any attempted transfer in violation of
this Section 3 shall be void and without effect. The Units and your right to receive Shares in settlement of the Units under this Agreement shall be subject to forfeiture as provided in Section 6 until
satisfaction of the vesting conditions set forth in Section 5.

4. No Shareholder Rights. The Units subject to this Award do not entitle you to any rights of a holder of the Company’s common stock. You will not have any of the rights of a shareholder of
the Company in connection with the grant of Units subject to this Agreement unless and until Shares are issued to you upon settlement of the Units as provided in Section 7.

5.  Vesting_of Units. For purposes of this Agreement, “Vesting Date” means any date, including the Scheduled Vesting Dates specified in the Vesting Schedule on the cover page of this
Agreement, on which Units subject to this Agreement vest as provided in this Section 5. Notwithstanding the vesting and subsequent settlement of this Award, it shall remain subject to the
provisions of Section 14 of the Plan.

(a) Scheduled Vesting. If you remain a Service Provider continuously from the Grant Date specified on the cover page of this Agreement, then the Units will vest in the
amounts and on the Scheduled Vesting Dates specified in the Vesting Schedule.

(b) Accelerated Vesting. The vesting of outstanding Units will be accelerated under the circumstances provided below:

1) Death or Disability. If your Service terminates prior to the final Scheduled Vesting Date due to your death or Disability, then all of the unvested Units shall
vest as of such termination date.

2) Change in Control. Pursuant to the terms of the Plan, the provisions of Section 11 of the Plan are hereby superseded for purposes of this Agreement by the
provisions set forth on Appendix A attached hereto. If a Change in Control occurs while you continue to be an Service Provider and prior to the final Scheduled Vesting Date,
the provisions of Section 11 as set forth in Appendix A shall apply.

6. Effect of Termination of Service. Except as otherwise provided in accordance with Section 5(b) above, if you cease to be a Service Provider, you will forfeit all unvested Units.
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7. Settlement of Units. Subject to Section 14 of the Plan, after any Units vest pursuant to Section 5, the Company shall, as soon as practicable (but no later than the 15% day of the third
calendar month following the Vesting Date), cause to be issued and delivered to you (or to your personal representative or your designated beneficiary or estate in the event of your death, as
applicable) one Share in payment and settlement of each vested Unit. Delivery of the Shares shall be effected by the issuance of a stock certificate to you, by an appropriate entry in the stock
register maintained by the Company’s transfer agent with a notice of issuance provided to you, or by the electronic delivery of the Shares to a brokerage account you designate, and shall be
subject to the tax withholding provisions of Section 9 and compliance with all applicable legal requirements as provided in Section 18 of the Plan, and shall be in complete satisfaction and
settlement of such vested Units. If the Units that vest include a fractional Unit, the Company shall round the number of vested Units to the nearest whole Unit prior to issuance of Shares as
provided herein.

8. Dividend Equivalents. If the Company pays cash dividends on its Shares while any Units subject to this Agreement are outstanding, then the Company shall credit, as of each dividend
payment date, a dollar amount of dividend equivalents to your account. The dollar amount of the dividend equivalents credited shall be determined by multiplying the number of Units credited to
your account pursuant to this Agreement as of the dividend record date times the dollar amount of the cash dividend per Share. Your right to receive such accrued dividend equivalents shall vest,
and the amount of the accrued dividend equivalents shall be paid in cash, to the same extent and at the same time as the underlying Units to which the dividend equivalents relate vest and are
settled, as provided in Sections 5 and 7 of this Agreement. No interest shall accrue on any unpaid dividend equivalents. Any dividend equivalents accrued on Units that are forfeited in accordance
with this Agreement shall also be forfeited.

9. Tax Consequences and Withholding. No Shares will be delivered to you in settlement of vested Units unless you have made arrangements acceptable to the Company for payment of any
federal, state, local or foreign withholding taxes that may be due as a result of the delivery of the Shares. You hereby authorize the Company (or any Affiliate) to withhold from payroll or other
amounts payable to you any sums required to satisfy such withholding tax obligations, and otherwise agree to satisfy such obligations in accordance with the provisions of Section 14 of the Plan.
You further authorize and consent to the Company, or its respective agents, satisfying all withholding tax obligations by having the Company or its agent withhold a number of Shares that would
otherwise be issued to you in settlement of the Units and that have a fair market value equal to the amount of such withholding tax obligations, unless in lieu thereof, you elect at the time of
conversion of the Units such other then-permitted method or combination of methods established by the Committee in its discretion, if any, to satisfy your withholding tax obligations.

10. Notices. Every notice or other communication relating to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be mailed to or delivered (including electronically) to the party for whom it is intended at
such address as may from time to time be designated by it in a notice mailed or delivered to the other party as herein provided. Unless and until some other address is so designated, all notices
or communications by you to the Company shall be mailed or delivered to the Company, to the attention of its Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, at its office at 13200 Pioneer Trail,
Eden Prairie, MN 55347, slbogart@winnebagoind.com, and all notices or communications by the Company to you may be given to you personally or may be mailed or, if you are still a Service
Provider, emailed to you at the address indicated in the Company's records as your most recent mailing or email address.

11. Additional Provisions.

(@) No Right to Continued Service. This Agreement does not give you a right to continued Service with the Company or any Affiliate, and the Company or any such Affiliate may
terminate your Service at any time and otherwise deal with you without regard to the effect it may have upon you under this Agreement.

(b) Governing Plan Document. This Agreement and the Award are subject to all the provisions of the Plan, and to all interpretations, rules and regulations which may, from time to time,
be adopted and promulgated by the Committee pursuant to the Plan. If there is any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govern.

(c) Governing Law. This Agreement, the parties’ performance hereunder, and the relationship between them shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of lowa, without giving effect to the choice of law principles thereof.

(d) Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be severable and if any provision of this Agreement is found by any court to be unenforceable, in whole or in part, the remainder
of this Agreement shall nevertheless be enforceable and binding on the parties. You also agree that any trier of fact may modify any invalid, overbroad or unenforceable provision of this
Agreement so that such provision, as modified, is valid and enforceable under applicable law.

(e) Binding_Effect. This Agreement will be binding in all respects on your heirs, representatives, successors and assigns, and on the successors and assigns of the Company.

(f) Section 409A of the Code. The award of Units as provided in this Agreement and any issuance of Shares or payment pursuant to this Agreement are intended to be exempt from
Section 409A of the Code under the short-term deferral exception specified in Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-I(b)(4).

(g) Electronic Delivery and Acceptance. The Company may deliver any documents related to this Restricted Stock
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Unit Award by electronic means and request your acceptance of this Agreement by electronic means. You hereby consent to receive all applicable documentation by electronic delivery and to
participate in the Plan through an on-line (and/or voice activated) system established and maintained by the Company or the Company'’s third-party stock plan administrator.

By signing the cover page of this Agreement or otherwise accepting this Agreement in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all the terms and conditions described
above and in the Plan document.
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APPENDIX A
11. Corporate Transactions; Change in Control.
(a) Corporate Transactions. The following provisions shall apply to outstanding Awards in the event of a Change in Control that involves a Corporate Transaction.

(1) Continuation, Assumption or Replacement of Awards. In the event of a Corporate Transaction, then the surviving or successor entity (or its parent) may continue, assume
or replace Awards outstanding as of the date of the Corporate Transaction (with such adjustments as may be required or permitted by Section 17), and such Awards or replacements therefor
shall remain outstanding and be governed by their respective terms, subject to Section 11(a)(4) below. A surviving or successor entity may elect to continue, assume or replace only some Awards
or portions of Awards. For purposes of this Section 11(a)(1), an Award shall be considered assumed or replaced if, in connection with the Corporate Transaction and in a manner consistent with
Code Section 409A (and Code Section 424 if the Award is an 1SO), either (i) the contractual obligations represented by the Award are expressly assumed by the surviving or successor entity (or
its Parent) with appropriate adjustments to the number and type of securities subject to the Award and the exercise price thereof that preserves the intrinsic value of the Award existing at the time
of the Corporate Transaction, or (ii) the Participant has received a comparable equity-based award that preserves the intrinsic value of the Award existing at the time of the Corporate Transaction
and contains terms and conditions that are substantially similar to those of the Award. To the extent vesting of any Award continued, assumed or replaced under this Section 11(a)(1) is subject to
satisfaction of specified performance goals, those goals shall be deemed to be achieved as of the date of the Corporate Transaction at the target level of performance, or, in the discretion of the
Committee, at the actual level of performance (if determinable), and such Awards shall continue to be subject to any continuing service requirements.

(2) Acceleration. If and to the extent that outstanding Awards under the Plan are not continued, assumed or replaced in connection with a Corporate Transaction, then (i) all
outstanding Option and SAR Awards shall become fully vested and exercisable for such period of time prior to the effective time of the Corporate Transaction as is deemed fair and equitable by
the Committee, and shall terminate at the effective time of the Corporate Transaction, (ii) all outstanding Stock Awards shall fully vest immediately prior to the effective time of the Corporate
Transaction, and (jii) to the extent vesting of any Award is subject to satisfaction of specified performance goals, such Award shall be deemed “fully vested” for purposes of this Section 11(a)(2) at
the greater of target level of performance or actual level of performance (if determinable) and the vested portion of the Award at that level of performance is proportionate to the portion of the
performance period that has elapsed as of the effective time of the Corporate Transaction. The Committee shall provide written notice of the period of accelerated exercisability of Option and SAR
Awards to all affected Participants. The exercise of any Option or SAR Award whose exercisability is accelerated as provided in this Section 11(a)(2) shall be conditioned upon the consummation
of the Corporate Transaction and shall be effective only immediately before such consummation.

(3) Payment for Awards. If and to the extent that outstanding Awards under the Plan are not continued, assumed or replaced in connection with a Corporate Transaction, then
the Committee may provide that some or all of such outstanding Awards shall be canceled at or immediately prior to the effective time of the Corporate Transaction in exchange for payments to
the holders as provided in this Section 11(a)(3). The Committee will not be required to treat all Awards similarly for purposes of this Section 11(a)(3). The payment for any Award canceled shall
be in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between (i) the fair market value (as determined in good faith by the Committee) of the consideration that would otherwise be received in the
Corporate Transaction for the number of Shares subject to the Award, and (ii) the aggregate exercise price (if any) for the Shares subject to such Award. If the amount determined pursuant to the
preceding sentence is not a positive number with respect to any Award, such Award may be canceled pursuant to this Section 11(a)(3) without payment of any kind to the affected Participant.
With respect to an Award whose vesting is subject to the satisfaction of specified performance goals, the number of Shares subject to such an Award for purposes of this Section 11(a)(3) shall be
the number of Shares as to which the Award would have been deemed “fully vested” for purposes of Section 11(a)(2). Payment of any amount under this Section 11(a)(3) shall be made in such
form, on such terms and subject to such conditions as the Committee determines in its discretion, which may or may not be the same as the form, terms and conditions applicable to payments to
the Company’s stockholders in connection with the Corporate Transaction, and may, in the Committee’s discretion, include subjecting such payments to vesting conditions comparable to those of
the Award canceled, subjecting such payments to escrow or holdback terms comparable to those imposed upon the Company’s stockholders under the Corporate Transaction, or calculating and
paying the present value of payments that would otherwise be subject to escrow or holdback terms.

(4) Termination After a Corporate Transaction. If and to the extent that Awards are continued, assumed or replaced under the circumstances described in Section 11(a)(1),
and if within twenty-four (24) months after the Corporate Transaction a Participant experiences an involuntary termination of employment for reasons other than Cause, or terminates his or her
employment for Good Reason, then (i) outstanding Option and SAR Awards issued to the Participant that are not yet fully exercisable shall immediately become exercisable in full and shall
remain exercisable for one year following the Participant’s termination of employment, and (ii) any Stock Awards that are not yet fully vested shall immediately vest in full.

(b)  Other Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control that does not involve a Corporate Transaction, if within twenty-four (24) months after the Change in Control a
Participant experiences an involuntary termination of employment for
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reasons other than Cause, or terminates his or her employment for Good Reason, then (i) outstanding Option and SAR Awards issued to the Participant that are not yet fully exercisable shall
immediately become fully vested and exercisable and shall remain exercisable for one year following the Participant’'s termination of employment, (ii) any Stock Awards that are not yet fully
vested shall immediately vest in full, and (iii) to the extent vesting of any Award is subject to satisfaction of specified performance goals, such Award shall be deemed “fully vested” for purposes of
this Section 11(b) at the greater of target level of performance or actual level of performance (if determinable) and the vested portion of the Award at that level of performance is proportionate to
the portion of the performance period that has occurred up to the date of such Participant’s termination of employment.

(c) Dissolution or Liquidation. Unless otherwise provided in an applicable Agreement, in the event of a proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the Committee will notify
each Participant as soon as practicable prior to the effective date of such proposed transaction. An Award will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed action.
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Exhibit 10d.

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
2014 OMNIBUS EQUITY, PERFORMANCE AWARD, AND
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

Performance Stock Unit Agreement

Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), hereby grants an award of
Performance Stock Units to you, the Participant named below. The terms and conditions of this Award are set forth in this Performance Stock Unit Agreement (the “Agreement”), consisting of this
cover page, the Terms and Conditions on the following pages and the attached Exhibit 1, and in the Plan document, a copy of which has been provided to you. Any capitalized term that is used
but not defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning assigned to it in the Plan as it currently exists or as it is amended in the future.

Name of Participant:
Target Number of Performance Stock Units:
Maximum Number of Performance Stock Units:
Grant Date:
Performance Period: August 26, 2018 - August 28, 2021
The number of Units determined in accordance with Exhibit 1 to have been earned as of the end of the Performance Period will vest* on

the date the Company’s Human Resources Committee certifies such performance results, which shall be no later than the 10th day of the

Vesting Schedule: third calendar month following the end of the performance period.

Performance Goals: See Exhibit1

* Assumes your service has been continuous from the Grant Date to the vesting date.

By signing below or otherwise evidencing your acceptance of this Agreement in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all of the terms and conditions contained in this
Agreement and in the Plan document. You acknowledge that you have received and reviewed these documents.

PARTICIPANT: WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
By:
Title:
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WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
2014 OMNIBUS EQUITY, PERFORMANCE AWARD, AND
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
Performance Stock Unit Agreement

Terms and Conditions

1. Defined Terms. For purposes of this Agreement, the definitions of terms contained in the Plan hereby are incorporated by reference, except to the extent that any such term is
specifically defined in this Agreement.

“Cause” means, unless otherwise defined in a then-effective written agreement (including an Agreement) between a Participant and the Company or any Affiliate, a Participant’s
(i) material failure to perform satisfactorily the duties reasonably required of the Participant by the Company (other than by reason of Disability); (ii) material violation of any law, rule, regulation,
court order or regulatory directive (other than traffic violations, misdemeanors or other minor offenses); (iii) material breach of the Company's business conduct or ethics code or of any fiduciary
duty or nondisclosure, non-solicitation, non-competition or similar obligation owed to the Company or any Affiliate; (iv) engaging in any act or practice that involves personal dishonesty on the part
of the Participant or demonstrates a willful and continuing disregard for the best interests of the Company and its Affiliates; or (v) engaging in dishonorable or disruptive behavior, practices or acts
which would be reasonably expected to harm or bring disrepute to the Company or any of its Affiliates, their business or any of their customers, employees or vendors.

“Change in Control” means one of the following:
(1) An Exchange Act Person becomes the beneficial owner (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) of securities of the Company representing 30% or
more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding Voting Securities, except that the following will not constitute a Change in Control:
(A) any acquisition of securities of the Company by an Exchange Act Person from the Company for the purpose of providing financing to the Company;
(B) any formation of a Group consisting solely of beneficial owners of the Company's Voting Securities as of the effective date of the Plan; or

(C) any repurchase or other acquisition by the Company of its Voting Securities that causes any Exchange Act Person to become the beneficial owner of 30% or
more of the Company'’s Voting Securities.

If, however, an Exchange Act Person or Group referenced in clause (A), (B) or (C) above acquires beneficial ownership of additional Company Voting Securities after initially becoming the
beneficial owner of 30% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s Voting Securities by one of the means described in those clauses, then a Change in Control will be deemed to
have occurred.

(2) Individuals who are Continuing Directors cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the members of the Board.

(3) A Corporate Transaction is consummated, unless, immediately following such Corporate Transaction, all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the
beneficial owners of the Company's Voting Securities immediately prior to such Corporate Transaction beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the combined voting power of the
then outstanding Voting Securities of the surviving or acquiring entity resulting from such Corporate Transaction (including beneficial ownership through any parent of such entity) in substantially
the same proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to such Corporate Transaction, of the Company's Voting Securities.

“Continuing Director” means an individual (i) who is, as of the effective date of the Plan, a director of the Company, or (ii) who becomes a director of the Company after the effective
date hereof and whose initial election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders, was approved by at least a majority of the then Continuing Directors but excluding, for purposes
of this clause (ii), an individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as the result of an actual or threatened proxy contest involving the solicitation of proxies or consents by a person or Group
other than the Board, or by reason of an agreement intended to avoid or settle an actual or threatened proxy contest.

“Corporate Transaction” means (i) a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or (ii) a merger, consolidation, share exchange or similar transaction
involving the Company, regardless of whether the Company is the surviving entity.

“Exchange Act Person” means any natural person, entity or Group other than (i) the Company or any Affiliate; (ii) any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained
by the Company or any Affiliate; (i) an underwriter temporarily holding securities in connection with a registered public offering of such securities; or (iv) an entity whose Voting Securities are
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beneficially owned by the beneficial owners of the Company’s Voting Securities in substantially the same proportions as their beneficial ownership of the Company’s Voting Securities.
“Good Reason” shall have the meaning set forth in your change in control agreement, if applicable.

“Group” means two or more persons who act, or agree to act together, as a partnership, limited partnership, syndicate or other group for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting or
disposing of securities of the Company.

“Service” means your provision of services to the Company or any Affiliate in any Service Provider capacity. Your Service shall be deemed to have terminated either upon an actual
cessation of providing services to the Company or any Affiliate or upon the entity to which you provide services ceasing to be an Affiliate. Service shall not be deemed terminated in the case of (i)
any approved leave of absence; (ii) your transfer among the Company and any Affiliates in any Service Provider capacity; or (iii) any change in your status so long as you remain in the service of
the Company or any Affiliate in any Service Provider capacity.

“Service Provider” means an Employee, a non-employee director, or any natural person who is a consultant or advisor, or is employed by a consultant or advisor retained by the
Company or any Affiliate, and who provides services (other than in connection with (i) a capital-raising transaction or (ii) promoting or maintaining a market in Company securities) to the Company
or any Affiliate.

“Voting Securities” of an entity means the outstanding equity securities (or comparable equity interests) entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of such entity.

2.  Award of Performance Stock Units. The Company hereby confirms the grant to you, as of the Grant Date and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan, of an
award of Performance Stock Units (the “Units”) in an amount initially equal to the Target Number of Performance Stock Units specified on the cover page of this Agreement. The number of Units
that may actually be earned and become eligible to vest pursuant to this Award can be between 0% and 200% of the Target Number of Units, but may not (except for any Dividend Equivalent
Units credited to you pursuant to Section 7 below) exceed the Maximum Number of Performance Stock Units specified on the cover page of this Agreement. Each Unit that is earned as a result of
the performance goals specified in Exhibit 1 to this Agreement having been satisfied and which thereafter vests represents the right to receive one share of the Company’s common stock (each, a
“Share”). Prior to their settlement or forfeiture in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Units granted to you will be credited to a performance stock unit account in your name
maintained by the Company. This account will be unfunded and maintained for book-keeping purposes only, with the Units simply representing an unfunded and unsecured contingent obligation
of the Company.

3. Restrictions Applicable to Units. Neither this Award nor the Units subject to this Award may be sold, assigned, transferred, exchanged or encumbered, voluntarily or involuntarily, other
than a transfer upon your death in accordance with your will, by the laws of descent and distribution or pursuant to a beneficiary designation submitted in accordance with the Plan. Following any
such transfer, this Award shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions that were applicable to the Award immediately prior to its transfer. Any attempted transfer in violation of this
Section 3 shall be void and without effect. The Units and your right to receive Shares in settlement of any Units under this Agreement shall be subject to forfeiture except to extent the Units have
been earned and thereafter vest as provided in Sections 5 and 6.

4. No Shareholder Rights. The Units subject to this Award do not entitle you to any rights of a holder of the Company’s common stock. You will not have any of the rights of a shareholder of
the Company in connection with any Units granted or earned pursuant to this Agreement unless and until Shares are issued to you in settlement of earned and vested Units as provided in Section

5. Vesting_and Forfeiture of Units. For purposes of this Agreement, “Vesting Date” means any date, including the Scheduled Vesting Date (defined below), on which Units subject to this
Agreement vest as provided in this Section 5. Subject in all cases to Section 14 of the Plan, the Units shall vest at the earliest of the following times and to the degree specified.

(a) Scheduled Vesting. The number of Units that have been earned during the Performance Period, as determined by the Committee in accordance with Exhibit 1, will vest on
the Scheduled Vesting Date, so long as your Service has been continuous from the Grant Date to the Scheduled Vesting Date. For these purposes, the “Scheduled Vesting Date” means the date
the Committee certifies (i) the degree to which the applicable performance goals for the Performance Period have been satisfied, and (ii) the number of Units that have been earned during the
Performance Period as determined in accordance Exhibit 1, which certification shall occur no later than the 10th day of the third calendar month following the end of the performance period.

(b) Death or Disability. If your Service terminates by reason of your death or Disability prior to the Scheduled Vesting Date, then the Target Number of Units specified on the cover page
of this Agreement Award shall immediately vest in full or, in the discretion of the Committee upon its determination of the actual level of performance (if determinable), the number of Units
specified by the Committee.

(c) Change in Control. Pursuant to the terms of the Plan, the provisions of Section 11 of the Plan are hereby superseded for purposes of this Agreement by the provisions set forth on
Appendix A attached hereto. If a Change in Control
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occurs after the Grant Date but before the Scheduled Vesting Date and your Service continues to the date of the Change in Control, the provisions of Section 11 as set forth in Appendix A shall
apply.

(d) Forfeiture of Unvested Units. To the extent any of Sections 5(a) through (c) is applicable to this Award, any Units that do not vest on the Vesting Date as provided therein shall
immediately be forfeited. If your Service terminates prior to the Scheduled Vesting Date under circumstances other than as set forth in Sections 5(b) and 5(c), all unvested Units shall immediately
be forfeited.

6. Settlement of Units. Subject to Section 10 below and Section 14 of the Plan, as soon as practicable after any date on which Units vest (but no later than the 15 day of the third calendar
month following the end of the performance period ), the Company shall cause to be issued and delivered to you (or to your personal representative or your designated beneficiary or estate in the
event of your death, as applicable) one Share in payment and settlement of each vested Unit. Delivery of the Shares shall be effected by the issuance of a stock certificate to you, by an
appropriate entry in the stock register maintained by the Company'’s transfer agent with a notice of issuance provided to you, or by the electronic delivery of the Shares to a brokerage account
you designate, and shall be subject to the tax withholding provisions of Section 8 and compliance with all applicable legal requirements as provided in Section 18 of the Plan, and shall be in
complete satisfaction and settlement of such vested Units. If the Units that vest include a fractional Unit, the Company shall round the number of vested Units to the nearest whole Unit prior to
issuance of Shares as provided herein.

7. Dividend Equivalents. If the Company pays cash dividends on its Shares while any Units subject to this Agreement are outstanding, then on the date this Award vests pursuant to Section 5
above, the Total Dividend Equivalent Amount will be credited to your performance stock unit account in cash. The “Total Dividend Equivalent Amount” will be determined by multiplying the number
of underlying Units determined to have vested at the end of the performance period by the per share amount of each cash dividend paid on the Company’s common stock with a record date and
payment date occurring between the Grant Date and the Vesting Date, and adding those products together. The Total Dividend Equivalent Amount so credited will be fully vested and subject to
settlement at the same time as the underlying Units as provided in Section 6 above. Any dividend equivalents accrued on Units that are forfeited in accordance with this Agreement shall also be
forfeited.

8. Tax Consequences and Withholding. No Shares will be delivered to you in settlement of vested Units unless you have made arrangements acceptable to the Company for payment of any
federal, state, local or foreign withholding taxes that may be due as a result of the delivery of the Shares. You hereby authorize the Company (or any Affiliate) to withhold from payroll or other
amounts payable to you any sums required to satisfy such withholding tax obligations, and otherwise agree to satisfy such obligations in accordance with the provisions of Section 14 of the Plan.
You further authorize and consent to the Company, or its respective agents, satisfying all withholding tax obligations by having the Company or its agent withhold a number of Shares that would
otherwise be issued to you in settlement of the Units and that have a fair market value equal to the amount of such withholding tax obligations, unless in lieu thereof, you elect at the time of
conversion of the Units such other then-permitted method or combination of methods established by the Committee in its discretion, if any, to satisfy your withholding tax obligations.

9. Notices. Every notice or other communication relating to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be mailed to or delivered (including electronically) to the party for whom it is intended at
such address as may from time to time be designated by it in a notice mailed or delivered to the other party as herein provided. Unless and until some other address is so designated, all notices
or communications by you to the Company shall be mailed or delivered to the Company, to the attention of its Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, at its office at 13200 Pioneer Trail,
Eden Prairie, MN 55347, slbogart@winnebagoind.com, and all notices or communications by the Company to you may be given to you personally or may be mailed or, if you are still a Service
Provider, emailed to you at the address indicated in the Company's records as your most recent mailing or email address.

10. Restrictions on Transfer. You may not sell, transfer, assign, pledge or otherwise encumber or dispose of any portion of the Shares you receive upon settlement of this Award, until the one-
year anniversary of the Award settlement date. Any attempt to sell, transfer, assign, pledge or encumber any portion of the related Shares you receive upon settlement of this Award prior to such
one-year anniversary shall be void and have no effect.

11. Additional Provisions.

(@) No Right to Continued Service. This Agreement does not give you a right to continued Service with the Company or any Affiliate, and the Company or any such Affiliate may
terminate your Service at any time and otherwise deal with you without regard to the effect it may have upon you under this Agreement.

(b) Governing Plan Document. This Agreement and the Award are subject to all the provisions of the Plan, and to all interpretations, rules and regulations which may, from time to time,
be adopted and promulgated by the Committee pursuant to the Plan. If there is any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govern.

(c) Governing Law. This Agreement, the parties’ performance hereunder, and the relationship between them shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of lowa, without giving effect to the choice of law principles thereof.
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(d) Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be severable and if any provision of this Agreement is found by any court to be unenforceable, in whole or in part, the remainder
of this Agreement shall nevertheless be enforceable and binding on the parties. You also agree that any trier of fact may modify any invalid, overbroad or unenforceable provision of this
Agreement so that such provision, as modified, is valid and enforceable under applicable law.

(e) Binding_Effect. This Agreement will be binding in all respects on your heirs, representatives, successors and assigns, and on the successors and assigns of the Company.

(f) Section 409A of the Code. The award of Units as provided in this Agreement and any issuance of Shares or payment pursuant to this Agreement are intended to be exempt from
Section 409A of the Code under the short-term deferral exception specified in Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-I(b)(4).

(9) Electronic Delivery and Acceptance. The Company may deliver any documents related to this Restricted Stock Unit Award by electronic means and request your acceptance of this
Agreement by electronic means. You hereby consent to receive all applicable documentation by electronic delivery and to participate in the Plan through an on-line (and/or voice activated) system
established and maintained by the Company or the Company's third-party stock plan administrator.

By signing the cover page of this Agreement or otherwise accepting this Agreement in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all the terms and conditions described
above and in the Plan document.

Exhibit 10d-5



APPENDIX A
11. Corporate Transactions; Change in Control.
(a) Corporate Transactions. The following provisions shall apply to outstanding Awards in the event of a Change in Control that involves a Corporate Transaction.

(1) Continuation, Assumption or Replacement of Awards. In the event of a Corporate Transaction, then the surviving or successor entity (or its parent) may continue, assume
or replace Awards outstanding as of the date of the Corporate Transaction (with such adjustments as may be required or permitted by Section 17), and such Awards or replacements therefor
shall remain outstanding and be governed by their respective terms, subject to Section 11(a)(4) below. A surviving or successor entity may elect to continue, assume or replace only some Awards
or portions of Awards. For purposes of this Section 11(a)(1), an Award shall be considered assumed or replaced if, in connection with the Corporate Transaction and in a manner consistent with
Code Section 409A (and Code Section 424 if the Award is an 1SO), either (i) the contractual obligations represented by the Award are expressly assumed by the surviving or successor entity (or
its Parent) with appropriate adjustments to the number and type of securities subject to the Award and the exercise price thereof that preserves the intrinsic value of the Award existing at the time
of the Corporate Transaction, or (ii) the Participant has received a comparable equity-based award that preserves the intrinsic value of the Award existing at the time of the Corporate Transaction
and contains terms and conditions that are substantially similar to those of the Award. To the extent vesting of any Award continued, assumed or replaced under this Section 11(a)(1) is subject to
satisfaction of specified performance goals, those goals shall be deemed to be achieved as of the date of the Corporate Transaction at the target level of performance, or, in the discretion of the
Committee, at the actual level of performance (if determinable), and such Awards shall continue to be subject to any continuing service requirements.

(2) Acceleration. If and to the extent that outstanding Awards under the Plan are not continued, assumed or replaced in connection with a Corporate Transaction, then (i) all
outstanding Option and SAR Awards shall become fully vested and exercisable for such period of time prior to the effective time of the Corporate Transaction as is deemed fair and equitable by
the Committee, and shall terminate at the effective time of the Corporate Transaction, (ii) all outstanding Stock Awards shall fully vest immediately prior to the effective time of the Corporate
Transaction, and (jii) to the extent vesting of any Award is subject to satisfaction of specified performance goals, such Award shall be deemed “fully vested” for purposes of this Section 11(a)(2) at
the greater of target level of performance or actual level of performance (if determinable) and the vested portion of the Award at that level of performance is proportionate to the portion of the
performance period that has elapsed as of the effective time of the Corporate Transaction. The Committee shall provide written notice of the period of accelerated exercisability of Option and SAR
Awards to all affected Participants. The exercise of any Option or SAR Award whose exercisability is accelerated as provided in this Section 11(a)(2) shall be conditioned upon the consummation
of the Corporate Transaction and shall be effective only immediately before such consummation.

(3) Payment for Awards. If and to the extent that outstanding Awards under the Plan are not continued, assumed or replaced in connection with a Corporate Transaction, then
the Committee may provide that some or all of such outstanding Awards shall be canceled at or immediately prior to the effective time of the Corporate Transaction in exchange for payments to
the holders as provided in this Section 11(a)(3). The Committee will not be required to treat all Awards similarly for purposes of this Section 11(a)(3). The payment for any Award canceled shall
be in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between (i) the fair market value (as determined in good faith by the Committee) of the consideration that would otherwise be received in the
Corporate Transaction for the number of Shares subject to the Award, and (ii) the aggregate exercise price (if any) for the Shares subject to such Award. If the amount determined pursuant to the
preceding sentence is not a positive number with respect to any Award, such Award may be canceled pursuant to this Section 11(a)(3) without payment of any kind to the affected Participant.
With respect to an Award whose vesting is subject to the satisfaction of specified performance goals, the number of Shares subject to such an Award for purposes of this Section 11(a)(3) shall be
the number of Shares as to which the Award would have been deemed “fully vested” for purposes of Section 11(a)(2). Payment of any amount under this Section 11(a)(3) shall be made in such
form, on such terms and subject to such conditions as the Committee determines in its discretion, which may or may not be the same as the form, terms and conditions applicable to payments to
the Company’s stockholders in connection with the Corporate Transaction, and may, in the Committee’s discretion, include subjecting such payments to vesting conditions comparable to those of
the Award canceled, subjecting such payments to escrow or holdback terms comparable to those imposed upon the Company’s stockholders under the Corporate Transaction, or calculating and
paying the present value of payments that would otherwise be subject to escrow or holdback terms.

(4) Termination After a Corporate Transaction. If and to the extent that Awards are continued, assumed or replaced under the circumstances described in Section 11(a)(1),
and if within twenty-four (24) months after the Corporate Transaction a Participant experiences an involuntary termination of employment for reasons other than Cause, or terminates his or her
employment for Good Reason, then (i) outstanding Option and SAR Awards issued to the Participant that are not yet fully exercisable shall immediately become exercisable in full and shall
remain exercisable for one year following the Participant’s termination of employment, and (ii) any Stock Awards that are not yet fully vested shall immediately vest in full.

(b)  Other Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control that does not involve a Corporate Transaction, if within twenty-four (24) months after the Change in Control a
Participant experiences an involuntary termination of employment for
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reasons other than Cause, or terminates his or her employment for Good Reason, then (i) outstanding Option and SAR Awards issued to the Participant that are not yet fully exercisable shall
immediately become fully vested and exercisable and shall remain exercisable for one year following the Participant’'s termination of employment, (ii) any Stock Awards that are not yet fully
vested shall immediately vest in full, and (iii) to the extent vesting of any Award is subject to satisfaction of specified performance goals, such Award shall be deemed “fully vested” for purposes of
this Section 11(b) at the greater of target level of performance or actual level of performance (if determinable) and the vested portion of the Award at that level of performance is proportionate to
the portion of the performance period that has occurred up to the date of such Participant’s termination of employment.

(c) Dissolution or Liquidation. Unless otherwise provided in an applicable Agreement, in the event of a proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the Committee will notify
each Participant as soon as practicable prior to the effective date of such proposed transaction. An Award will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed action.

Exhibit 10d-7



EXHIBIT 1

Exhibit 10d-8



Exhibit 10e.

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
2014 OMNIBUS EQUITY, PERFORMANCE AWARD, AND
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Non-Employee Director)

Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2014 Omnibus Equity, Performance Award, and Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), hereby grants an award of
Restricted Stock Units to you, the Participant named below. The terms and conditions of this Award are set forth in this Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (the “Agreement”), consisting of
this cover page and the Terms and Conditions on the following pages, and in the Plan document, a copy of which has been made available to you. Any capitalized term that is used but not
defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning assigned to it in the Plan as it currently exists or as it is amended in the future.

Name of Participant:
Number of Restricted Stock Units:

Grant Date:October 15, 2018

Scheduled Vesting Date: November 1, 2019

By signing below or otherwise evidencing your acceptance of this Agreement in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all of the terms and conditions contained in this
Agreement and in the Plan document. You acknowledge that you have reviewed these documents.

PARTICIPANT: WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
By:
Title:
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WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
2014 OMNIBUS EQUITY, PERFORMANCE AWARD, AND
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Non-Employee Director)

Terms and Conditions

1. Defined Terms. For purposes of this Agreement, the definitions of terms contained in the Plan hereby are incorporated by reference, except to the extent that any such term is specifically
defined in this Agreement.

“Change in Control” means one of the following:

(1) An Exchange Act Person becomes the beneficial owner (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) of securities of the Company representing 30% or
more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding Voting Securities, except that the following will not constitute a Change in Control:

(A) any acquisition of securities of the Company by an Exchange Act Person from the Company for the purpose of providing financing to the Company;
(B) any formation of a Group consisting solely of beneficial owners of the Company's Voting Securities as of the effective date of the Plan; or

(C) any repurchase or other acquisition by the Company of its Voting Securities that causes any Exchange Act Person to become the beneficial owner of 30% or
more of the Company'’s Voting Securities.

If, however, an Exchange Act Person or Group referenced in clause (A), (B) or (C) above acquires beneficial ownership of additional Company Voting Securities after initially becoming the
beneficial owner of 30% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s Voting Securities by one of the means described in those clauses, then a Change in Control will be deemed to
have occurred.

(2) Individuals who are Continuing Directors cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the members of the Board.

(3) A Corporate Transaction is consummated, unless, immediately following such Corporate Transaction, all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the
beneficial owners of the Company's Voting Securities immediately prior to such Corporate Transaction beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the combined voting power of the
then outstanding Voting Securities of the surviving or acquiring entity resulting from such Corporate Transaction (including beneficial ownership through any parent of such entity) in substantially
the same proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to such Corporate Transaction, of the Company's Voting Securities.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that this Award constitutes a deferral of compensation subject to Code Section 409A, then no Change in Control shall be deemed to have occurred
upon an event described in this definition unless the event would also constitute a change in ownership or effective control of, or a change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets
of, the Company under Code Section 409A.

“Corporate Transaction” means (i) a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or (ii) a merger, consolidation, share exchange or similar transaction
involving the Company, regardless of whether the Company is the surviving entity.

“Continuing Director’” means an individual (i) who is, as of the effective date of the Plan, a director of the Company, or (ii) who becomes a director of the Company after the effective
date hereof and whose initial election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders, was approved by at least a majority of the then Continuing Directors but excluding, for purposes
of this clause (ii), an individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as the result of an actual or threatened proxy contest involving the solicitation of proxies or consents by a person or Group
other than the Board, or by reason of an agreement intended to avoid or settle an actual or threatened proxy contest.

“Exchange Act Person” means any natural person, entity or Group other than (i) the Company or any Affiliate; (ii) any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained
by the Company or any Affiliate; (i) an underwriter temporarily holding securities in connection with a registered public offering of such securities; or (iv) an entity whose Voting Securities are
beneficially owned by the beneficial owners of the Company’s Voting Securities in substantially the same proportions as their beneficial ownership of the Company’s Voting Securities.

“Group” means two or more persons who act, or agree to act together, as a partnership, limited partnership, syndicate or other group for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting or
disposing of securities of the Company.
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“Service” means your provision of services to the Company or any Affiliate in any Service Provider capacity. Your Service shall be deemed to have terminated either upon an actual
cessation of providing services to the Company or any Affiliate or upon the entity to which you provide services ceasing to be an Affiliate. Service shall not be deemed terminated in the case of (i)
any approved leave of absence; (ii) your transfer among the Company and any Affiliates in any Service Provider capacity; or (i) any change in your status so long as you remain in the service of
the Company or any Affiliate in any Service Provider capacity.

“Service Provider” means an Employee, a non-employee director, or any natural person who is a consultant or advisor, or is employed by a consultant or advisor retained by the
Company or any Affiliate, and who provides services (other than in connection with (i) a capital-raising transaction or (ii) promoting or maintaining a market in Company securities) to the Company
or any Affiliate.

“Voting Securities” of an entity means the outstanding equity securities (or comparable equity interests) entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of such entity.

2. Grant of Restricted Stock Units. The Company hereby confirms the grant to you, as of the Grant Date and subject to the terms and conditions in this Agreement and the Plan, of the
number of Restricted Stock Units specified on the cover page of this Agreement (the “Units”). Each Unit represents the right to receive one share of the Company’s Common Stock (each, a
“Share”). Prior to their settlement or forfeiture in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Units granted to you will be credited to an account in your name maintained by the Company.
This account shall be unfunded and maintained for book-keeping purposes only, with the Units simply representing an unfunded and unsecured contingent obligation of the Company.

3. Restrictions Applicable to Units. Neither this Award nor the Units subject to this Award may be sold, assigned, transferred, exchanged or encumbered, voluntarily or involuntarily, other
than a transfer upon your death in accordance with your will, by the laws of descent and distribution or pursuant to a beneficiary designation submitted in accordance with the Plan. Following any
such transfer, this Award shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions that were applicable to this Award immediately prior to its transfer. Any attempted transfer in violation of
this Section 3 shall be void and without effect. The Units and your right to receive Shares in settlement of the Units under this Agreement shall be subject to forfeiture as provided in Section 6 until
satisfaction of the vesting conditions set forth in Section 5.

4. No Shareholder Rights. The Units subject to this Award do not entitle you to any rights of a holder of the Company’s common stock. You will not have any of the rights of a shareholder of
the Company in connection with the grant of Units subject to this Agreement unless and until Shares are issued to you upon settlement of the Units as provided in Section 7.

5. Vesting_of Units. For purposes of this Agreement, “Vesting Date” means any date, including the Scheduled Vesting Date specified on the cover page of this Agreement, on which Units
subject to this Agreement vest as provided in this Section 5.

(a) Scheduled Vesting. If you remain a Service Provider continuously from the Grant Date specified on the cover page of this Agreement, then the Units will vest on the
Scheduled Vesting Date.

(b) Accelerated Vesting. The vesting of outstanding Units will be accelerated under the circumstances provided below:

1) Death or Disability. If your Service as a Director terminates prior to the Scheduled Vesting Date due to your death or Disability, then all of the unvested
Units shall vest as of such termination date.

2) Change in Control. If a Change in Control occurs while you continue to serve as a Director and prior to the Scheduled Vesting Date, then all of the unvested
Units shall vest as of the date of the consummation of such Change in Control.

6. Forfeiture. Except as otherwise provided in accordance with Section 5 above, if you cease to be a Service Provider, you will forfeit all unvested Units.
7. Settlement of Units.

(a) Subject to Section 7(b) and Section 10 below, after any Units vest pursuant to Section 5, the Company shall, as soon as practicable (but no later than the 15" day of the third
calendar month following the Vesting Date), cause to be issued and delivered to you (or to your personal representative or your designated beneficiary or estate in the event of your death, as
applicable) one Share in payment and settlement of each vested Unit. Delivery of the Shares shall be effected by the issuance of a stock certificate to you, by an appropriate entry in the stock
register maintained by the Company’s transfer agent with a notice of issuance provided to you, or by the electronic delivery of the Shares to a brokerage account you designate, and shall be
subject to the tax provisions of Section 9 and compliance with all applicable legal requirements as provided in Section 18 of the Plan, and shall be in complete satisfaction and settlement of such
vested Units. If the Units that vest include a fractional Unit, the Company shall round the number of vested Units to the nearest whole Unit prior to issuance of Shares as provided herein.
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(b) If Participant has elected to defer the Units (“Deferred Units”) pursuant to the terms of the Plan, after any Deferred Units vest pursuant to Section 5 the settlement of such Deferred
Units shall be governed by the terms of the Plan and the Participant’s related deferral election.

8. Dividend Equivalents. If the Company pays cash dividends on its Shares while any Units subject to this Agreement are outstanding, then the Company shall credit, as of each dividend
payment date, a dollar amount of dividend equivalents to your account. The dollar amount of the dividend equivalents credited shall be determined by multiplying the number of Units credited to
your account pursuant to this Agreement as of the dividend record date times the dollar amount of the cash dividend per Share. Your right to receive such accrued dividend equivalents shall vest,
and the amount of the accrued dividend equivalents shall be paid in cash, to the same extent and at the same time as the underlying Units to which the dividend equivalents relate vest and are
settled, as provided in Sections 5 and 7 of this Agreement. No interest shall accrue on any unpaid dividend equivalents. Any dividend equivalents accrued on Units that are forfeited in accordance
with this Agreement shall also be forfeited.

9. Tax Consequences. No Shares will be delivered to you in settlement of vested Units unless you have made arrangements acceptable to the Company for payment of any federal, state, local
or foreign taxes that may be due as a result of the delivery of the Shares.

10. Restrictions on Transfer. You may not sell, transfer, assign, pledge or otherwise encumber or dispose of any portion of this Award, including any Shares you receive upon settlement
thereof, until you terminate service as a non-employee Director. Any attempt to sell, transfer, assign, pledge or encumber any portion of this Award or the related Shares you receive upon
settlement thereof prior to such termination of service shall have no effect.

11. Notices. Every notice or other communication relating to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be mailed to or delivered (including electronically) to the party for whom it is intended at
such address as may from time to time be designated by it in a notice mailed or delivered to the other party as herein provided. Unless and until some other address is so designated, all notices
or communications by you to the Company shall be mailed or delivered to the Company, to the attention of its Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, at its office at 13200 Pioneer Trail,
Eden Prairie, MN 55347, slbogart@winnebagoind.com, and all notices or communications by the Company to you may be given to you personally or may be mailed or, if you are still a Director,
emailed to you at the address indicated in the Company's records as your most recent mailing or email address.

12. Additional Provisions.

(@) No Right to Continued Service. This Agreement does not give you a right to continued Service with the Company or any Affiliate, and the Company or any such Affiliate may
terminate your Service at any time and otherwise deal with you without regard to the effect it may have upon you under this Agreement.

(b) Governing Plan Document. This Agreement and the Award are subject to all the provisions of the Plan, and to all interpretations, rules and regulations which may, from time to time,
be adopted and promulgated by the Committee pursuant to the Plan. If there is any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govern.

(c) Governing Law. This Agreement, the parties’ performance hereunder, and the relationship between them shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of lowa, without giving effect to the choice of law principles thereof.

(d) Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be severable and if any provision of this Agreement is found by any court to be unenforceable, in whole or in part, the remainder
of this Agreement shall nevertheless be enforceable and binding on the parties. You also agree that any trier of fact may modify any invalid, overbroad or unenforceable provision of this
Agreement so that such provision, as modified, is valid and enforceable under applicable law.

(e) Binding_Effect. This Agreement will be binding in all respects on your heirs, representatives, successors and assigns, and on the successors and assigns of the Company.

(f) Section 409A of the Code. Except to the extent Participant has elected to defer the Units pursuant to the terms of the Plan and his or her related deferral election form, the award of
Units as provided in this Agreement and any issuance of Shares or payment pursuant to this Agreement are intended to be exempt from Section 409A of the Code under the short-term deferral
exception specified in Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-I(b)(4).

(g) Electronic Delivery and Acceptance. The Company may deliver any documents related to this Restricted Stock Unit Award by electronic means and request your acceptance of this

Agreement by electronic means. You hereby consent to receive all applicable documentation by electronic delivery and to participate in the Plan through an on-line (and/or voice activated) system
established and maintained by the Company or the Company’s third-party stock plan administrator.

By signing the cover page of this Agreement or otherwise accepting this Agreement in a manner approved by the Company, you agree to all the terms and conditions described
above and in the Plan document
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Exhibit 10f.

[AMENDED AND RESTATED]
CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT

This [AMENDED AND RESTATED] CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made as of , 2018, by and between WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC., an
lowa corporation (the “Company”), and (the “Executive”).

RECITALS:
WHEREAS, the Executive is a senior executive and officer of the Company and has made and is expected to continue to make major contributions to the profitability, growth and financial
strength of the
Company;

WHEREAS, the Company recognizes that, as is the case for most publicly held companies, the possibility of a Change in Control (as hereafter defined) exists;

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the Company, considering the past and future services of the Executive, to improve the security and climate for objective decision making by providing for
the personal security of the Executive upon a Change in Control;

[WHEREAS, the Company and the Executive are party to an Employment Agreement dated as of (the “Employment Agreement”);]

[WHEREAS, the Company and the Executive are party to a Executive Change of Control Agreement dated as of , 20__ (the “Prior Agreement”), and the Company and the
Executive desire to amend and restate the Prior Agreement, as set forth in this Agreement,]

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the past and future services rendered and to be rendered by the Executive to the Company and of the mutual covenants and
agreements hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT:

1. Change in Control. “Change in Control” means one of the following:

(@)  An Exchange Act Person becomes the beneficial owner (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) of securities of the Company representing 30% or more of the
combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding Voting Securities, except that the following will not constitute a Change in Control:

@) any acquisition of securities of the Company by an Exchange Act Person from the Company for the purpose of providing financing to the Company;
(ii) any formation of a Group consisting solely of beneficial owners of the Company's Voting Securities as of the effective date of this Plan; or

(i) any repurchase or other acquisition by the Company of its Voting Securities that causes any Exchange Act Person to become the beneficial owner of 30% or more of the
Company’s Voting Securities.

If, however, an Exchange Act Person or Group referenced in clause (i), (i) or (iii) above acquires beneficial ownership of additional Company Voting Securities after initially
becoming the beneficial owner of 30% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s Voting Securities by one of the means described in those clauses, then a Change
in Control will be deemed to have occurred.

(b) Individuals who are Continuing Directors cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the members of the Board.

(c) A Corporate Transaction is consummated, unless, immediately following such Corporate Transaction, all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the beneficial
owners of the Company's Voting Securities immediately prior to such Corporate Transaction beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the combined voting power of
the then outstanding Voting Securities of the surviving or acquiring entity resulting from such Corporate Transaction (including beneficial ownership through any Parent of such
entity) in substantially the same proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to such Corporate Transaction, of the Company's Voting Securities.

2. Certain Definitions. For purposes of the foregoing definition of “Change in Control” and this Agreement, the capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:
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(b)
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(d)

(e)

()]

(h)
@

3.

Affiliate. “Affiliate” means any entity that is a “subsidiary corporation,” as defined in Code Section 424(f), of the Company.
Board. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

Code. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and in effect from time to time. For purposes of the Plan, references to sections of the Code shall be
deemed to include any applicable regulations thereunder and any successor or similar statutory provisions.

Continuing Director. “Continuing Director” means an individual (i) who is, as of the effective date of this Agreement, a director of the Company, or (ii) who becomes a director of
the Company after the effective date hereof and whose initial election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders, was approved by at least a majority of the then
Continuing Directors, but excluding, for purposes of this clause (i), an individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as the result of an actual or threatened proxy contest
involving the solicitation of proxies or consents by a person or Group other than the Board, or by reason of an agreement intended to avoid or settle an actual or threatened
proxy contest.

Corporate Transaction. “Corporate Transaction” means (i) a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or (ii) a merger, consolidation, share
exchange or similar transaction involving the Company, regardless of whether the Company is the surviving entity.

Exchange Act Person. “Exchange Act Person” means any natural person, entity or Group other than (i) the Company or any Affiliate; (ii) any employee benefit plan (or related
trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any Affiliate; (i) an underwriter temporarily holding securities in connection with a registered public offering of such
securities; or (iv) an entity whose Voting Securities are beneficially owned by the beneficial owners of the Company’s Voting Securities in substantially the same proportions as
their beneficial ownership of the Company’s Voting Securities.

Group. “Group” means two or more persons who act, or agree to act together, as a partnership, limited partnership, syndicate or other group for the purpose of acquiring,
holding, voting or disposing of securities of the Company.

Parent. “Parent” means a “parent corporation,” as defined in Code Section 424(e).

Voting Securities. “Voting Securities” of an entity means the outstanding equity securities (or comparable equity interests) entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of
such entity.

Termination Following_a Change of Control. If a Change of Control shall have occurred during the Term while the Executive is still an employee of the Company, and if the

Executive’s employment with the Company is terminated within two years following such Change of Control (the “Transition Period”), then the Executive shall be entitled to the compensation and
benefits provided in Section 4, subject to the terms and conditions of Section 4, unless such termination is a result of: (a) the Executive’s death; (b) the Executive’s Disability (as defined in Section
3(a) below); (c) the Executive’s termination by the Company for Cause (as defined in Section 3(b) below); or (d) the Executive’s decision to terminate employment other than for Good Reason (as
defined in Section 3(c) below).

@

(b)

©

Disability. If, as a result of the Executive’s incapacity due to physical or mental illness or incapacity, (i) the Executive shall have been absent from his duties with the Company on a
full-time basis for six months and (ii) within 30 days after written Notice of Termination is thereafter given by the Company the Executive shall not have returned to the full-time
performance of the Executive’s duties, the Company may terminate the Executive’s employment due to “Disability.”

Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” means (i) an act or acts of dishonesty undertaken by the Executive and intended to result in substantial gain or personal
enrichment at the expense of the Company; (ii) unlawful conduct or gross misconduct by the Executive that is injurious to the Company; (iii) the indictment or conviction of the
Executive of, or plea of guilty or no-contest by the Executive to, a gross misdemeanor involving moral turpitude or a felony; (iv) failure of the Executive to perform his duties and
responsibilities or to satisfy his obligations as an officer or employee of the Company, or other material breach of any terms or conditions of any written policy of the Company or
any written agreement between the Executive and the Company, which failure or breach, if curable, has not been cured by the Executive within thirty (30) days after written notice
thereof to the Executive from the Company.

Good Reason. For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” means the initial occurrence of any of the following actions by the Company without the Executive’s express
written consent and not caused by the Executive:

(i) a material diminution of the Executive’s position, duties, responsibilities or status with the Company as in effect immediately prior to the Change of Control (other than for
Cause or Disability);
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(d)

(e)

(ii) a material reduction by the Company of the Executive’s base salary or annual bonus opportunity as in effect immediately prior to the Change of Control;

(i) arelocation by more than 50 miles of the Executive’s primary work location or, if the Executive’s primary work location is the Company’s headquarters, a relocation of the
Company’s headquarters by more than 50 miles; or

(iv)  any material breach by the Company of this Agreement (including without limitation a failure by the Company to obtain the assumption of this Agreement by any
successor or assign of the Company as required by Section 7 below) or of any other written agreement between the Company and the Executive relating to Executive's
employment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Good Reason shall not exist unless and until each of the following have occurred: (x) within 90 days after the circumstances giving rise to Good
Reason first exist, the Executive has delivered a Notice of Termination to the Company specifying the grounds and facts believed to constitute Good Reason; (y) the Company
has failed to cure such circumstances within 30 days following receipt of the Notice of Termination from the Executive; and (z) the Executive’s termination of employment is
effective within 180 days following the Company'’s receipt of the Notice of Termination for Good Reason.

Notice of Termination. Any termination of the Executive’'s employment by the Company or the Executive shall be communicated to the other party by a Notice of Termination. For
purposes of this Agreement, a “Notice of Termination” means a written notice setting forth the specific termination provisions in this Agreement relied upon and the facts and
circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of the Executive’s employment under the provisions so indicated.

Date of Termination. “Date of Termination” means (a) if this Agreement is terminated by the Company for Disability, 30 days after Notice of Termination is given to the Executive
(provided that the Executive shall not have returned to the performance of the Executive’s duties on a fulltime basis during such 30-day period) or (b) if the Executive’s
employment is terminated for any other reason, the date specified in such Notice of Termination (provided that, in the case of termination by the Company for Cause or by the
Executive for Good Reason, any applicable cure period has expired without cure).

4. Severance Compensation upon Termination of Employment.

(@)

(b)

Severance Benefit. If the Company shall terminate the Executive’s employment during the Transition Period other than pursuant to Section 3(a) or (b), or if the Executive shall
terminate his employment during the Transition Period pursuant to Section 3(c) for Good Reason, then, subject to Section 4(b) and (c) below, the Company shall pay to the
Executive in a lump sum as severance pay (the “Severance Benefit”) an amount equal to [for CEO: three (3) times][for other executives: two (2) times] the sum of:

(i) the Executive’s annual base salary, as in effect immediately preceding the Change of Control or, if higher, as of the Termination Date, plus
(ii) the Executive’s annual target bonus, as in effect immediately preceding the Change of Control or, if higher, as of the Termination Date, plus
(i) the annual premium cost applicable to the Executive as of the Termination Date for continuation of the Executive’s then-current group medical, dental and vision

insurance coverage, pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended (“COBRA”).

The Severance Benefit shall be paid to the Executive within five (5) business days following the expiration of any consideration and revocation periods applicable to the Release
(defined below), provided that the Executive has signed and has not revoked the Release as provided therein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the consideration and revocation
periods applicable to the Release would allow for payment in either of two calendar years, the Severance Benefit will be paid in the second calendar year.

No Duplication of Severance Benefit. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted to provide the Executive with duplicate cash severance benefits in connection with any
separation from employment with the Company following a Change in Control. In the event that the Executive is entitled to receive severance pay or benefits under any other
employment, severance or similar agreement, or under any severance benefit plan provided by the Company (excluding any equity-based compensation), to avoid duplication of
benefits the amount of the Severance Benefit payable under this Agreement will be reduced by any such other severance benefits payable to the Executive. [For avoidance of
doubt, pursuant to Section ___ of the Employment Agreement, if the Severance Benefit under Section 4(a) above becomes payable to the Executive under this Agreement,
such Severance Benefit shall replace and supersede any payments and benefits provided to the Executive under Section ___ of the Employment Agreement; provided,
however, that if any amount that would otherwise be payable under Section ___ of the Employment Agreement is non-qualified deferred compensation subject to Section 409A
that becomes payable upon or in connection with the occurrence of a Change in Control, a transaction shall not be considered
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to constitute a Change in Control unless it also constitutes a change in control event for purposes of Section 409A.]

(c) Conditions of Payment. The Company will have no obligation to the Executive for payment of the Severance Benefit pursuant to Section 4(a) unless the Executive has signed
and not revoked a release of claims in favor of the Company in a form to be prescribed by the Company (which release will not require the Executive to release any rights the
Executive may have to vested benefits under any employee benefit plan of the Company, to equity-based awards pursuant to Company plans and award agreements granted to
the Executive, or to indemnification or advancement of defense costs consistent with applicable laws and insurance policies of the Company) (the “Release”).

5. Excise Tax - Payment Limitation. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement or any written or unwritten policy of the Company to the contrary, (i) if it shall be determined that any
payment or distribution by the Company to or for the benefit of the Executive, whether paid or payable or distributed or distributable pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, any other agreement
between the Company and the Executive or otherwise (a “Payment” or “Payments”), would constitute a parachute payment (“Parachute Payment”) within the meaning of Section 280G of the
Code and would, but for this Section 5, be subject to the excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Code (or any successor provision thereto) or any similar tax imposed by state or local law
or any interest or penalties with respect to such taxes (collectively, the “Excise Tax"), then prior to making the Payments, a calculation shall be made comparing (i) the Net Benefit (as defined
below) to the Executive of the Payments after payment of the Excise Tax to (ii) the Net Benefit to the Executive if the Payments are limited to the extent necessary to avoid being subject to the
Excise Tax. Only if the amount calculated under (i) above is less than the amount under (ii) above will the Payments be reduced to the minimum extent necessary to ensure that no portion of the
Payments is subject to the Excise Tax. “Net Benefit” shall mean the present value of the Payments net of all federal, state, local, foreign income, employment and excise taxes. The Payments
shall be reduced in a manner that maximizes the Executive’'s economic position. In applying this principle, the reduction shall be made in a manner consistent with the requirements of Section
409A of the Code, and where two economically equivalent amounts are subject to reduction but payable at different times, such amounts shall be reduced on a pro rata basis but not below zero.
Any determination required under this Section 5, including whether any payments or benefits are parachute payments, shall be made by the Company in its sole discretion. The Executive shall
provide the Company with such information and documents as the Company may reasonably request in order to make a determination under this Section 5. The Company’s determination shall
be final and binding on the Executive. The parties acknowledge that the Executive is solely responsible for the payment of any Excise Tax that is assessed based upon a payment made pursuant
to this Agreement or any other payment made by the Company pursuant to any other plan or obligation.

6. No Obligation To Mitigate Damages;_No Effect on Other Contractual Rights. The Executive shall not be required to mitigate damages or the amount of any payment provided
for under this Agreement by seeking other employment or otherwise, nor shall the amount of any payment provided for under this Agreement be reduced by any compensation earned by the
Executive as the result of employment by another employer after the Date of Termination, or otherwise except as provided in Section 4(b).

7. Successor to the Company.

(a) The Company will require any successor or assign (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) of all or substantially all of the business and/or
assets of the Company, expressly, absolutely and unconditionally to assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent that the
Company would be required to perform it if no such succession or assignment had taken place. Any failure of the Company to obtain such agreement prior to the effectiveness
of any such succession or assignment shall be a material breach of this Agreement and shall entitle the Executive to terminate the Executive’s employment for Good Reason in
the manner specified in Section 3(d). As used in this Agreement, “Company” shall mean the Company as hereinbefore defined and any successor or assign to its business
and/or assets as aforesaid which executes and delivers the agreement provided for in this Section 7 or which otherwise becomes bound by all the terms and provisions of this
Agreement by operation of law.

(b) This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Executive’s personal and legal representatives, executors, administrators, successors, heirs, distributes,
devisees and legatees. If the Executive should die while any amounts are still payable to him hereunder, all such amounts, unless otherwise provided herein, shall be paid in
accordance with and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement to the Executive’s devisee, legatee, or other designee or, if there be no such designee, to the
Executive’s estate.

8. No Guaranty of Employment. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to entitle the Executive to continued employment with the Company, and the rights of the Company to
terminate the employment of the Executive shall continue as fully as if this Agreement were not in effect, subject to the payment of benefits provided for herein, as applicable.

9. Notice. For purposes of this Agreement, notices and all other communications provided for in the Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given (a)
when delivered, if delivered personally; (b) one business day after deposit with a reputable national overnight courier; or (c) three business days after mailing by United States registered mail,
return receipt requested, postage prepaid. For purposes of Section 9(b) and (c), delivery shall be properly addressed as follows:
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If to the Company:
Winnebago Industries, Inc.
Attn: Chairman of the Board
605 W. Crystal Lake Road
P.O. Box 152
Forest City, lowa 50436

If to the Executive:
At the last known address in the Personnel records of the Company

or such other address as either party may have furnished to the other in writing in accordance herewith, except that notices of change of address shall be effective only upon receipt.

10. Miscellaneous. No provisions of this Agreement may be modified, waived or discharged unless such waiver, modification or discharge is agreed to in writing signed by the
Executive and the Company. No waiver by either party hereto at any time of any breach by the other party hereto of, or compliance with, any condition or provision of this Agreement to be
performed by such other party shall be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions at the same or at any prior or subsequent time. No agreements or representations, oral or
otherwise, express or implied, with respect to the subject matter hereof have been made by either party which are not set forth expressly in this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to such subject matter, [including without limitation the Prior Agreement,] but does not affect, modify or supersede [the Employment Agreement or]
any other agreement between the Company and the Executive relating to the protection of confidential, proprietary or trade secret information, the assignment of inventions, non-competition with
the Company or non-solicitation of customers or employees.

11. Dispute Resolution. In the event of any controversy, dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the breach, enforcement or interpretation of this Agreement (“Dispute”), before
proceeding with any legal claim or process each party agrees to first notify the other party in writing of the existence and nature of the Dispute and to enter into discussions in good faith to resolve
such Dispute. In the event that the parties are unable to resolve such Dispute through negotiation within thirty (30) days after written notice of the Dispute was first given, the parties agree to
participate in good faith in mediation before a mediator mutually agreed upon by the parties. If the parties are unable to agree on a mediator, a mediator shall be selected through the strike
method from a list of mediators provided pursuant to the Commercial Mediation Procedures of the American Arbitration Association as in effect on the date of the written notice of Dispute is given.
The mediation session will be held within ninety (90) days following written notice of the Dispute is first given by any party and, if not resolved, either party may proceed with such Dispute in any
other manner permitted by law. The mediation shall be treated confidentially by the parties and the mediator. This Section 11 does not affect any rights that Executive or the Company may have
in law or equity to immediately seek emergency or temporary injunctive and other equitable relief.

12. Governing_Law; Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota, without giving effect to any choice or
conflict of law provision or rule, whether of the State of Minnesota or any other jurisdiction, that would cause the application of laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of Minnesota.

13. Attorneys’ Fees. In any action or proceeding relating to any Dispute (other than mediation pursuant to Section 11), the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable
attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses from the other party, in addition to such other relief to which the prevailing party may be entitled.

14. Validity; Survival. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which
shall remain in full force and effect. The obligations and rights of the parties hereunder that by their terms continue beyond the Term shall survive termination of this Agreement.

15. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which together will constitute one and the
same instrument.

16. Confidentiality. At all times during and after employment with the Company, the Executive shall retain in confidence, and shall take reasonable steps to protect the confidentiality
of, any and all Confidential Information known to the Executive concerning the Company, its Affiliates and any of their businesses.

@ Confidential Information. “Confidential Information” means any confidential, proprietary, nonpublic or secret knowledge or information of the Company or any of its Affiliates that
the Executive acquires during employment with the Company or any of its Affiliates, whether developed by Executive or by others, concerning (i) any trade secrets, (ii) any
confidential, proprietary, nonpublic or secret design, process, formula, plan, model, specifications, device or material (whether or not patented or patentable) directly or indirectly
useful in any aspect of the business of the Company or any of its Affiliates, (iii) any customer or supplier list of the Company or any of its Affiliates, or any requirements,
specifications or other confidential information about or received from any customer or supplier,
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(b)

©

17.

(iv) any confidential, proprietary, nonpublic or secret development or research work of the Company or any of its Affiliates, (v) any strategic or other business, marketing or sales
plan of the Company or any of its Affiliates, (vi) any financial data or plan respecting the Company or any of its Affiliates, or (vii) any other confidential, nonpublic or proprietary
information or secret aspects of the business of the Company or any of its Affiliates.

Acknowledgement. The Executive acknowledges that the above described Confidential Information constitutes a unique and valuable asset of the Company and its Affiliates
and represents a substantial investment of time and expense by the Company and its Affiliates, and that any disclosure or other use of such knowledge or information other than
for the sole benefit of the Company would be wrongful and would cause irreparable harm to the Company and its Affiliates. The parties acknowledge and agree that the
Executive’s obligations to maintain the confidentiality of Confidential Information are in addition to any obligations of the Executive under applicable statutory or common law or
under any other agreement.

Exceptions. The foregoing obligations of confidentiality shall not apply to any Confidential Information that (i) is now or subsequently becomes generally publicly known or
generally known in the industry in which the Company operates in the form in which it was obtained from the Company (or its applicable Affiliate), but it is understood that where
individual items of information become public, a compilation, aggregation, or organization of information which includes such items may still continue to be Confidential
Information, (i) is independently made available to the Executive in good faith by a third party who has not violated an obligation of confidentiality to the Company or any of its
Affiliates, or (iii) is required to be disclosed by legal process. Nothing contained in the preceding sentence shall be interpreted to legitimize any disclosure of Confidential
Information by the Executive that occurs prior to any of the events described in items (i) through (iii) of the preceding sentence. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, the Executive understands that Executive may not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret
that is made (A) in confidence to a federal, state or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney if such disclosure is made solely for the purpose of
reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law or for pursuing an anti-retaliation lawsuit; or (B) in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if
such filing is made under seal and Executive does not disclose the trade secret except pursuant to a court order.

Term. This Agreement is effective for the period (the “Term”) commencing on the date specified in the first paragraph above and shall continue until December 31, 2021, provided
that such period shall be automatically extended for one year, and from year to year thereafter, until written notice of termination of this Agreement is given by the Company or the Executive to the
other party at least 60 days prior to December 31, 2021 or the extension year then in effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Change of Control occurs during the Term, the Term shall be
extended and shall continue until the last day of the Transition Period that commences upon such Change of Control.

18. Taxes; Section 409A. This Agreement is intended to satisfy the short-term deferral exception to Section 409A of the Code and the regulations thereunder. This Agreement shall be

administered accordingly; and if necessary, amended to ensure satisfaction of the short-term deferral exception.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement on the date set out above.

WINNEBAGO INDUSTRIES, INC.
By:

[name]
[title]

EXECUTIVE:

[name]
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
1, Michael J. Happe, Chief Executive Officer of Winnebago Industries, Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the "Registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant's fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant's auditors and the audit
committee of Registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 20, 2018 By: /s/ Michael J. Happe
Michael J. Happe

Chief Executive Officer, President



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Bryan L. Hughes, Chief Financial Officer of Winnebago Industries, Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the "Registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant's fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant's auditors and the audit
committee of Registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 20, 2018 By: /s/ Bryan L. Hughes
Bryan L. Hughes

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, |, Michael J. Happe, Chief Executive Officer of Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the
"Company"), hereby certify that to my knowledge:

a. The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended November 24, 2018 (the "Report") of the Company, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

b. The information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: December 20, 2018 By: /s/ Michael J. Happe
Michael J. Happe

Chief Executive Officer, President



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, |, Bryan L. Hughes, Chief Financial Officer of Winnebago Industries, Inc. (the
"Company"), hereby certify that to my knowledge:

a. The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended November 24, 2018 (the "Report") of the Company, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

b. The information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: December 20, 2018 By: /s/ Bryan L. Hughes
Bryan L. Hughes

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer



